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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 10th Annual General Meeting of the Members of SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED will be 
held on Friday September 29, 2023, at 12.00 PM,  through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), to 
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2023, together with Board's Report thereon and Auditors' Reports thereto.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva (DIN: 06616078), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re- appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor. 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(including statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), a remuneration of 
Rs.20,000 (Rupees Twenty Thousand Only) plus Goods & Service Tax (GST) as applicable and reimbursement of 
actual travel and out of - pocket expenses, for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024, as fixed by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the company, to be paid to M/s Tadhani and Co., Cost 
Accountants (Firm Registration Number 101837) for the conduct of the Cost Audit of the Company's Milk products  
be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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Name
of the
Director

Date
of
Birth

Date of
Appoin-
tment

Qualification
& Expertise
in
Functional
areas

Share
holding
in the
Comp-
any

Details of
Directorship
held in other
Companies as
on 31.03.2023
along with
listed
Entities from
which they
have resigned
in the
past three
years.

Details of
Membership/
Chairmanship
of Committee
(s) held in
other Compa-
nies as on
31.3.2023 along
with listed
entities from
which they
have resigned
in the past
three years.

No. of
board
meetings
attended
during
Financial
Year
2022-2023

Mr.
Dinesh
bhai
Bhuva

01-
06-
1971

14-
10-
2013

Under
Matriculate,
He is having
expertise in
franchise
business, 
corporate
relationship
management,
liasioning,
external
business
affairs,
corporate
social
responsibility
etc.

8,48,550
Equity
Shares

NIL. NIL. Thirteen

NOTES

1. Pursuant to  Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 
dated June 15, 2020 , General Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 
December 31, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 
Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and other SEBI Circulars and all other relevant circulars 
issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general 
meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can 
attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Information required to be furnished as required under SS-2 and pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, the particulars of Director who is proposed to be re-
appointed is given below: 

 Relation of re-appointed director with other Directors: Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva being brother of Bhupatbhai Bhuva 
and Sanjaybhai Bhuva.

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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8. In compliance with the MCA General Circular No. 
2/2022 dated 5th May 2022 and SEBI CIRCULAR 
No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD 2/ CIR /P/2022/62 dated 
13th May 2022, Notice of the AGM along with the 
Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through 
electronic mode to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/ 
Depositories. Members may note that the Notice 
calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company at www.scplco.com. The Notice 
can also be accessed from the websites of the 
Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited and National 
S t o c k  E x c h a n g e  o f  I n d i a  L i m i t e d  a t 
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com 
respectively and the AGM Notice is also available 
on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the 
R e m o t e  e - V o t i n g  f a c i l i t y )  i . e . , 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

9. All documents referred to in the notice and the 
explanatory statement requiring the approval of 
the Members at the AGM and other statutory 
registers shall be available for inspection by the 
Members at the Registered Of fice of the 
Company during office hours on all working days 
between 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. from the date of 
hereof up to the date of the AGM.

10. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members 
and Share Transfer Books of the Company will 
remain closed from 24th September 2023 to 29th 
September 2023 (both days inclusive) for the 
purpose of 10th AGM.

 
11. To support the 'Green Initiative', Members who 

have not yet registered their email addresses are 
requested to register the same with their DPs.

12. Members seeking any information with regard to 
the accounts or any matter to be placed at the 
AGM are requested to write to the Company 7 day 
b e f o r e  t h e  d a t e  o f  A G M  a t  e m a i l  o n 
cs@sheetalicecream.com. The same will replied 
by the Company suitably.

13. Members who would like to express their views or 
ask questions during the AGM may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request 
from their registered email address along with 
question/query, mentioning their name, DP ID and 
Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number and 
email ID at the cs@sheetalicecream.com 7 day 
before the date of AGM. Those Members who have 
registered themselves as a speaker will only be 
allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the AGM.

4. The members can join  the AGM through 
VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of commencement of the meeting 
by following the procedure mentioned herein after 
under the head “instructions for members for 
Attending AGM through VC/OAVM”. The facility of 
participation at AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available for 1000 members on a first come 
first serve basis. This does not include large 
Shareholders (i.e., holding 2 % or more shares), 
promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, the 
Chairpersons of Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee of the Company and 
Auditors, who are to attend AGM without 
restriction of first come first serve basis. 
Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM 
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
S E B I  ( L i s t i n g  O b l i g a t i o n s  &  D i s c l o s u r e 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), 
and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 
2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing 
facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in 
respect of the business to be transacted at the 
AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered 
into an agreement with National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member 
using remote e-Voting system as well as venue 
voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by 
NSDL.

6. Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto 
and forming part of this notice.

7. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 
08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and 
cast vote for the members is not available for this 
AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and 
Section 1 13  of  the Companies Act ,  2013, 
representatives of the members such as the 
President of India or the Governor of a State or 
body corporate can attend the AGM through 
VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 
Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other 
than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 
send a certified true scanned copy (PDF/JPEG 
Format) of its Board Resolution or governing body 
Resolution/Authorisation etc., authorising its 
representative to attend the Annual General 
Meeting through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to 
vo te  t h r o u g h  r e m o te  e -vo t i n g .  T h e  s a i d 
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the 
Company Institutional investors are encouraged 
to attend and vote at the meeting through VC.
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL.

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched,  cl ick on the icon “Login” which is  avai lable under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on September,26, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. and ends on September,28, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. The 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register 
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., September 22, 2023, may cast their vote 
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date, being September 22, 2023.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1:  Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode

 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi 
/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click 
on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
t h r o u g h  t h e i r  d e p o s i t o r y 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  Once 
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against company 
name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

I n d i v i d u a l  S h a r e h o l d e r s  h o l d i n g 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 
2499 7000

I n d i v i d u a l  S h a r e h o l d e r s  h o l d i n g 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800 22 55 33
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B. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen.

 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 
then user ID is 101456001***
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5.  Password details for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders are given below: 

 
 a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, 

then you can user your existing password 
to login and cast your vote.

 
 b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for 

the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘ i n i t i a l  p a s s w o r d ’  w h i c h  w a s 
communicated to you. Once you retrieve 
your ‘initial password’, you need to enter 
the ‘initial password’ and the system will 
force you to change your password.

 
 c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

  (i) If your email ID is registered in your 
d e m a t  a c c o u n t  o r  w i t h  t h e 
company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to 
you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the 
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open 
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID 
for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘ U s e r  I D ’  a n d  y o u r  ‘ i n i t i a l 
password’. 

  (ii) If your email ID is not registered, 
please follow steps mentioned 
b e l ow  i n  p r o c e s s  fo r  t h o s e 
shareholders whose email ids are 
not registered.

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the 
“ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password:

 a) Click on “Forgot User Details/ Password? 
”(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

 b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are 
holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

 c) If you are still unable to get the password 
by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning 
your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered 
address etc.

 d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time 
Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to 
“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page 
of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General 
Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General 
Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to 
see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General 
Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to 
cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. 
For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page 
opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. 
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and 
click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by 
you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you 
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders ( i .e.  other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
at tested specimen signature of  the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to 
v o t e ,  t o  t h e  S c r u t i n i z e r  b y  e - m a i l  t o 
chetanpatelcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
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evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also 
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney 
/ Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board 
Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-
Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to 
the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 
password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at 
the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 
call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send 
a request  at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please 
provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN 
(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to cs@sheetalicecream.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please 
provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of 
Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
cs@sheetalicecream.com. If you are an Individual 
shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you 
are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e., Login method for e-
Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a 
request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id 
and password for e-voting by providing above 
mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, 
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Par ticipants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email 
ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON 
THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM 
is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be 
present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions 
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-
Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for 
any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same 
person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE 
AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Members will be provided with a facility to attend 
the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-
Voting system. Members may access by following 
the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see 
link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” 
menu against company name. You are requested to 
click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting 
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of 
Company will be displayed. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User ID and 
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User 
ID and Password may retrieve the same by 
following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting 
through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera 
and use the Internet at a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from 
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
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respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 
m e n t i o n i n g  t h e i r  n a m e  d e m a t  a c c o u n t  n u m b e r/ f o l i o  n u m b e r,  e m a i l  i d ,  m o b i l e  n u m b e r  a t 
cs@sheetalicecream.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

General Instructions

1. Shareholders holding shares in demat mode, not registered their email address and mobile no. with DP, are 
immediately requested to register with your DP.

2. CS Chetan B. Patel of M/s. Chetan Patel & Associates Practicing Company Secretaries (ICSI Membership No.5188, 
COP: 3986) will act as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner.

3. Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can use 
his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013)

In conformity with the provisions of Section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement sets 
out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice and should be taken as 
forming part of the Notice.

Item No. 3 of Special Business:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
Board shall appoint an individual/ firm of cost accountant(s) in practice, on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, 
which shall also recommend remuneration for such Cost Auditor. The remuneration recommended by the Audit 
Committee shall be considered and approved by the Board of Directors and to be ratified by the shareholders.

On recommendation of the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 15.05.2023, the Board has considered and approved 
appointment of M/s Tadhani and Co., Cost Accountants (Registration Number 101837), for the conduct of the Cost Audit of 
the Cost Records at a remuneration of Rs. 20,000 plus Goods & Service Tax (GST) as applicable and reimbursement of 
actual travel and out-of-pocket expenses for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of remuneration by the 
members in terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the passing of the Resolutions set out at Item No. 3.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

TO 
THE MEMBERS,

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the 10th Annual Report on the performance of the Company together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ('FY') ended March 31, 2023.

1.  Financial Results:                         [Amount in Lacs ]

2.  State of the Company’s Affairs:

 With consistent performance and sheer dedication, the Company was stable in performance. Not only, the 
Company was able to continue the momentum of earning profit but has shown outstanding performance by 
reaching the bottom-line profits of Rs. 2,769.95 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 2,470.35 Lakhs in the previous financial 
year. 

 The Revenue from Operations for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 34,026.42 Lacs, which was greater than the previous year’s 
Total Revenue of Rs. 32,676.83 Lacs by giving a rise of 4.13%. Consequently, the Company reported a profit after tax 
for FY 2022-23 of Rs 2,045.42 Lacs in comparison with a Profit after tax of Rs. 1,833.55 Lacs for FY 2021- 22.

3.  Dividend and Transfer to Reserves:

 In order to plough back resources, your directors do not recommend any payment of dividend for the financial year. 
Further the Company has not transferred any amount to Reserves during the year. 

4.  Share Capital:

 The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023, is Rs. 10,50,00,000/- comprising 1,05,00,000 
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each. We would like to inform our shareholders that there is no change in the paid-up equity 
capital of the Company during FY 2022-23.

5.  Employees Stock Options Scheme:

 During the year, your company has not issued any shares under the Employees Stock Options Scheme to its 
employees.

6.  Credit Rating:

 During the year under review the Company has received following credit rating:

7.  Management Discussion & Analysis:

 In terms of Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 read with other applicable provisions, the detailed 
review of the operations, performance and outlook of the Company and its business is given in the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis Report (MDA) which forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure A and is incorporated 

PARTICILARS 

Revenue From Operations 
EBITDA
Less: Depreciation  
Finance Costs  
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  
Tax expenses 
Profit /(Loss) After Tax

34026.42
4481.31

964.37
746.99

2769.95
724.53

2045.42

  32676.83
4052.58
1090.29

491.94
2470.35

636.80
1833.55

Year Ended
31.03.2023

Year Ended
31.03.2022

FACILITIES 

Cash Credit CRISIL BBB/Stable
CRISIL BBB/Stable
CRISIL BBB/Stable

Assigned
Assigned
Assigned

RATINGS REMARKS

Proposed Fund Based Bank Limits 
Term Loan
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herein by reference and forms an integral part of 
this report.

 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

 In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 
Report on “Corporate Governance” is attached as 
an Annexure B and forms part of this report. 

8.  Change In The Nature Of Business  

 Company in its 9th Annual General Meeting held 
on 28 September 2022 Substituted its Object 
Clause III(A) in Memorandum of Association for 
the purpose of Diversification into areas which 
would be profitable for the company details of 
which is given below.

 Change of Object Clause: 

 1.  To carry on in India or elsewhere the 
business to manufacture, process, 
p r e p a r e ,  p r e s e r v e ,  c o n v e r t , 
commercialize, extract, cool, boil, collect, 
raise, pack repack, grade, sell, trade, 
export, import, stock, parlous, refine, 
prepare, supply, market, import, export, 
buy, distribute, store and to act as an 
agent, broker, consultants, consignors in 
all types of ice cream including premium 
ice cream such as sundae creation ice-
cream (decorative) swinger sundae, 
sandwich, nut coated roll, ball, natural 
fresh fruits range, magic roll, ice cream 
cake, candy, matka kulfi decorated with 
fresh fruits and ice cream soda essence 
and also fruit juices, various shakes, cold 
drinks, milk, flavored milk, butter milk and 
all other milk products. 

 2.  To carry on in India or elsewhere the 
business to manufacture, process, 
prepare disinfect, fermented, compound, 
mix, clean, wash, crush, grind, segregate, 
pack, repack, add, remove, heat, grade, 
preserve, freeze, distillate, improve, buy, 
sell, resale, import, export, transport, 
store, distribute, dispose, develop, 
handle, market, supply and to act as 
agents, job worker, representative, 
consultant, collaborator, stockiest or 
o t h e r w i s e  t o  d e a l  i n  a l l  t y p e s , 
descriptions, tastes, uses and packs of 
consumer food items, their by-products, 
ingredients,  derivatives,  residues, 
i n c l u d i n g  f o o d s  v e g e t a b l e s  a n d 
agricultural foods and all type of snacks, 
chips, corn product, other extruded 
products, packed foods, wheat flour and 
other flour and all kinds of food and food 

products, jams, jelly, pickles, spices, 
frozen foods, dehydrated foods, pre-
cooked foods, canned foods, preserved 
foods, health foods, health drink, fast 
foods, cream, cheese, butter, biscuits, 
breads, cakes, pastries, confectionery, 
sweets, chocolates, toffees, cereal 
products, bhujia, namkeen, papad, deshi 
sweet, residuary snacks, rasgulla, bakery 
products, confectioneries, edible oils, 
pulses, and their products, tinning of food 
stuffs, fruits, vegetable, cold drinks and all 
kinds of sharbat, syrups, thandai, soft 
drinks, ketchup, soda, spices, condiments 
and all kinds and other consumable 
provision of every description for human 
consumption.

 3.  To carry on in India or elsewhere the 
business to manufacturers, developers, 
a s s e m b l e r s ,  d e a l e r s ,  i m p o r t e r s , 
exporters, traders, purchasers, sellers, 
hire purchasers, hires, repairs, of power 
generating, and distributing plants, 
equipment, operating specially using 
power from renewable energy sources 
such as solar, wind, biogas, solar products 
like solar panel, solar lights, which may 
come out of research and to carry on the 
b u s i n e s s  a s  t o  d o  r e s e a r c h  a n d 
development, data collection, analysis, 
publishing of research and study material, 
efficient supply of quality inputs and 
technical guidance customized training & 
development solutions in the field of solar 
energy, renewable energy and solar 
products.

 4. To purchase, acquire, take on lease or in 
exchange or in any other lawful manner 
any area land, building structures and to 
turn the same into account develop the 
same and sale or dispose of or maintain 
the same and to build township, markets 
or other buildings on conveniences 
thereon and to equip the same or any part 
thereof with all or any amenities or 
conveniences, drainage facility, electric, 
telegraphic,  telephonic,  television 
installations and to deal with the same in 
any manner whatsoever.

 There is no other change in the nature of business, 
except mentioned above, of the Company during 
the financial year under review.

9.  Directors' Responsibility Statement:

 Based on the framework of internal financial 
controls and compliance systems established and 
maintained by the Company, the work performed 
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by the internal, statutory, secretarial auditors and 
external consultants including the audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting by the 
statutory auditors and the reviews performed by 
management and the relevant board committees, 
including the audit committee, the Board is of the 
opinion that the Company's internal financial 
controls were adequate and effective during FY 
2022-23.

 
 Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of 

Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, 
confirm that:

 i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, 
the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed and there is no material 
departures; 

 ii. They have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the loss of the Company for 
that period.

 iii. They have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and Detecting Fraud and other 
irregularities;

 
 iv. They have prepared the annual accounts 

on a going concern basis;

 v. They have laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the Company 
and such internal financial controls are 
adequate and operating effectively;

 vi. They have devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.

10. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

 In accordance with the requirements of the Act 
and the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. 
Dineshbhai Bhuva, (DIN: 06616078) retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. Relevant resolutions (Ordinary or 
Special, as applicable) seeking shareholders' 
approval forms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM.

 Mr. Vijaybhai B. Desai (DIN: 09713219) has been 
Regularized as an Independent Director of the 
company w.e.f. 28th September 2022 in the 9th 
AGM of the company to hold office for a term of 5 

Years also, he shall not be liable to retire by 
rotation. 

 The First term of Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka (DIN: 
07939036) and Mrs. Kiranben Gajera (DIN: 
07939020) as an Independent Directors of the 
Company expired on September 03, 2022. 
Therefore, after receiving recommendation from 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee the 
B o a r d  o f  D i r e c t o r s  h a d  a p p r o v e d  t h e 
reappointment of both Directors for second term 
of five years at its meeting held on August 25, 2022, 
and both the Directors had been Regularized in the 
9th AGM of the Company. Mr. Dakubhai Bhuva 
non-executive director (DIN: 06616070) has 
resigned from the Board of Directors w.e.f. from 
August 25.2022.

 
 Mr. Mahesh Purohit, company secretary of the 

Company resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2023, and Mr. 
Bharat Trivedi appointed as a company secretary 
and compliance officer of the Company w.e.f. 
August 16, 2023.

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the 
Act, the Independent Directors have submitted 
declarations that each of them meets the criteria 
of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of 
the Act along with Rules framed there under and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing 
Regulations'). In terms of Regulation 25 (8) of SEBI 
Listing Regulations they have confirmed that they 
are not aware of any circumstance or situation, 
which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that 
could impair or impact their ability to discharge 
their duties with an objective independent 
judgment and without any external influence. The 
Board of directors of the Company has taken on 
reco rd  t h e  d ec l a r at i o n  a n d  co nfi r m at i o n 
submitted by the independent directors after 
undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the 
s a m e.  T h e r e  h a s  b ee n  n o  c h a n g e  i n  t h e 
c i r c u m st a n ce s  af fec t i n g  t h e i r  st at u s  a s 
Independent Directors of the Company.

 The Independent Directors of the Company have 
confirmed that they have registered their names in 
t h e  d at a  b a n k  of  I n d e p e n d e n t  D i r ec to r s 
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate 
Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with 
Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the 
Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
as on March 31, 2023, are:

 Mr. Bhupat bhai Bhuva - Managing Director
       (DIN: 06616061)
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 Mr. Sanjay bhai Bhuva  -Whole time Director   
      (DIN: 06616078)
 Mr. Dinesh bhai Bhuva  -Whole time Director
      (DIN: 06616086)
 Ms. Jinal Naria  - Chief Financial Officer 
 Mr. Mahesh Purohit -Company Secretary &  
      Compliance Officer 
      (Resigned w.e.f.
       15.05.2023)
 Mr. Bharat P Trivedi  -Company Secretary and   
      Compliance Officer 
      (Appointed w.e.f.
      16.08.2023)

11. Number of Meetings of the Board:

 Thirteen (13) meetings of the Board were held 
during the year under review. For details of 
meetings of the Board, please refer to the 
Corporate Governance Report as Annexure B, 
which forms a part of the Annual Report.

12. Performance Evaluation of Board, Committee & 
Directors:

 
 The Board of Directors has carried out an annual 

evaluation of its own per formance, board 
committees, and individual Directors pursuant to 
the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing 
Regulations. The performance of the Board was 
evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from 
all the Directors on the basis of criteria such as the 
Board Composition and Structure; Degree of 
fulfillment of key responsibilities towards 
stakeholders (by way of monitoring corporate 
governance practices, participation in the long- 
term strategic planning, etc.); Effectiveness of 
board processes, information and functioning, 
etc.; Extent of co-ordination and cohesiveness 
between the Board and its Committees; and 
Quality of relationship between Board Members 
and the Management.

 The per formance of the commit tees was 
evaluated by the Board after seeking input from 
the committee members based on criteria such as 
the composition of committees, effectiveness of 
committee meetings, etc.

 
 In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, 

performance of Non-Independent Directors, the 
board as a whole and the Chairman of the 
Company was evaluated, considering the 
work/contribution of Executive Directors and 
Non-Executive Directors.

 The Board and the NRC reviewed the performance 
of individual Directors based on criteria such as 
the contribution of the individual Director to the 
Board and committee meetings like preparedness 
on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, 
etc.

 The above criteria are broadly based on the 
Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 
5, 2017. At the Board Meeting that followed the 
meeting of the Independent Directors and 
meeting of NRC, the performance of the Board, its 
committees, and individual directors was also 
d i s c u s s e d .  P e r f o r m a n c e  e v a l u a t i o n  o f 
Independent Directors was done by the entire 
Board, excluding the independent director being 
evaluated. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

13.  Vigil Mechanism:

 The Company has established the necessary vigil 
mechanism for directors and employees in 
confirmation with Section 177(9) of the Act and 
Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, to report 
concerns about unethical behavior. The details of 
the policy are also available on www.scplco.com.

14. Internal Financial Controls:

 The Company has an internal financial control 
system commensurate with the size and scale of 
its operations and the same has been operating 
effectively. The Internal Auditor evaluates the 
efficacy and adequacy of internal control system, 
accounting procedures and policies adopted by 
the Company for efficient conduct of its business, 
adherence to Company's policies, safeguarding of 
Company's assets, prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors and timely preparation of 
reliable financial information etc. Based on the 
report of internal audit function, process owners 
undertake corrective action in their respective 
areas and thereby strengthen the controls. 
Significant audit observations and corrective 
actions thereon were presented to the Audit 
Committee of the Board.

15. Audit Committee:
 
 The details including the composition of the Audit 

Committee, Meeting details, attendance at the 
Meetings and terms of Reference are included in 
the Corporate Governance Report as Annexure B, 
which forms a part of the Annual Report.

16. Statutory Auditors:
 
 At the 7th AGM held on December 28, 2020, the 

Members approved appointment of M/s. H.B. 
Kalaria & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 104571W) as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period 
of five years from the conclusion of the 7th Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 12th 
Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 
2025.
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17. Corporate Social Responsibility:

 Your Company has always laid emphasis on 
progress with social commitment. We believe 
strongly in our core values of empowerment and 
betterment of not only the employees but also our 
communities. The Company has developed the 
policy on Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') 
and was recommended by the CSR Committee 
and approved by the Board and the same can be 
accessed on the Company'  s  website at 
h t t p s : / / w w w . s c p l c o . c o m / w p -
content/uploads/2023/08/corporate-social-
responsibility-policy.pdf.

 The brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company 
and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on 
CSR activities during the year under review are set 
out in Annexure D of this report in the format 
prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021.

18. Auditor's Report and Secretarial Audit Report:
 
 The Statutory Auditor's Report and the Secretarial 

Auditor's Report are part of this annual report. 
Secretarial Auditor's Report is attached to this 
report as Annexure E.

 In the Statutory Auditors’ Report on the financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year 
e n d e d  o n  3 1 s t  M a r c h  2 0 2 3 ,  t h e r e  i s  n o 
Qualified/Adverse Opinion from Statutory Auditor 
during the financial year under review.

 Secretarial Auditor's Report is self-explanatory in 
nature and there is no Qualified/Adverse Opinion 
from Secretarial Auditor during the financial year 
under review.

19. Risk Management:

 T h e  C o m p a n y  h a s  f o r m u l a t e d  t h e  R i s k 
Management Policy in order to safeguard the 
organization from various risks through timely 
actions. It is designed to mitigate the risk in order 
to minimize the impact of the risk on the Business. 
The Management is regularly reviewing the risk 
and is taking appropriate steps to mitigate the 
risk.

 In the opinion of the Board there has been no 
identification of an element of risk that may 
threaten the existence of the Company.

20. Company Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or 
Investments:

 During the year, your Company has not given any 
loans, provided guarantees or made investments 
in terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

21. Related Party Transactions:

 In line with the requirements of the Act and the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has 
formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions 
and the same can be accessed on the Company's 
we b s i te  at  ht t p s : // w w w. s c p l co.co m / w p -
content/uploads/2023/07/RELATED-PARTY-
TRANSACTIONS-RTP-POLICY.pdf.

 During the year under review, all Related Party 
Transactions that were entered into were in the 
Ordinary Course of Business and at Arms' Length 
Basis. All transactions entered with related parties 
were approved by the Audit Committee.

 Further in FY 2022-23, there were no material 
transactions of the Company with any of its 
related parties. Therefore, the disclosure of 
Related Party Transactions as required under 
Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not 
applicable to the Company for FY 2022-23 and 
hence the same is not provided.

22. Annual Return:
 
 As provided under Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of 

the Act, read with Rule 12 of Chapter VII Rules of 
t h e  C o m p a n i e s  ( M a n a g e m e n t  a n d 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2020, Annual 
Return in Form MGT-7 for FY 2022-23 is uploaded 
on the website of the Company and can be 
a c c e s s e d  a t  w e b  l i n k 
h t t p s : / / w w w . s c p l c o . c o m / w p -
content/uploads/2023/08/mgt-7-fy-2022-
2023.pdf.

23. Particulars of Employees:

 Details Pertaining to remuneration and other 
details as required under Section 197 (12) of the 
Companies Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, is attached as Annexure F 
of this report. 

24. Deposits from Public:

 During the year under review, your Company has 
not accepted any deposit within the meaning of 
Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time 
being in force).

25. Material changes and commitment affecting the 
financial position of the Company:

 There is not any material change and commitment 
which has occurred between the end of the 
financial year and the date of the report which 
affects the financial position of the Company. 

26. Migration from BSE SME to BSE Main Board and 
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National Stock Exchange Limited of India.
 The Company was eligible for Migration from SME Board to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited main board. The Board of Directors approved Migration at its meeting held on March 23, 2022. For the 
approval of migration, the company had conducted the postal ballot by giving notice dated July 06, 2022, and 
approved the same on August 07, 2022. The Application for migration to the Main Board of BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India was made and In Principal Approval for the same has been received by the Exchanges on 
September 13, 2022 & the company got listed on BSE and National Stock Exchange Limited of India, Main board on 
22.11.2022.

27. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and company’s operations in future.

 During the year under review, no significant material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations.

28. Cost Auditors:

 In terms of Section 148 of the Act, the Company is required to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost 
Accountant. In this connection, the Board of Directors of the Company has on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, approved the appointment of M/s. Tadhani & Co. as the cost auditors of the Company for the year 
ending 31st March 2024.

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee 
and approved by the Board has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, appropriate resolution 
forms part of the Notice convening the AGM. M/s. Tadhani & Co. have vast experience in the field of cost audit and 
have been conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the past several years.

 MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

 The Directors of the Company to the best of their knowledge and belief state that the Company has maintained 
adequate Cost records as required to be maintained by the Company under the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules framed thereunder. 

29. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013:

 The Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment-free workplace for every individual working in 
the Company. The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the POSH Act, and the rules framed 
thereunder, including the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee. The Company has in place an Anti- 
Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the POSH Act and the same is available on the company’s 
website at https://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Sexual-Harrasment-Policy.pdf. Further, no 
case has been received under the said act during the year.

30. Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
[Pursuant to Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]:

 (A).  Details of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

(I) The steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy;

The Company has taken measures and applied strict 
control systems to monitor day to day power consumption, 
to endeavor to ensure the optimal use of energy with 
minimum extent possible wastage as far as possible. The 
day-to-day consumption is monitored, and various ways 
and means are adopted to reduce the power consumption 
as an effort to save energy. 

(ii) The steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy;

Company has Incorporated the Solar panel energy to 
produce the Electricity in an alternate manner.

(iii) The capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment

The Company has established ground mounted 1.2 MW 
solar photovoltaic power project at Tehsil, Chittal in Amreli 
district and 1.5 MW and 1.25 MW windmills at Kutch which

20

Sheetal Cool Products Limited   |   Annual Report 2022-23



have been generating electricity since April 01, 2021. By 
installing this solar and wind power plant company saved 
66,66,038 units in electricity bill by captive consumption of 
such units.

(I) The efforts made towards technology 
absorption;

Company has always been making best effort towards 
technology absorption, adaptation, and innovation to 
improve the quality.

(B) Technology Absorption:

(ii) The benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution

It improves the quality of company's products being 
manufactured and reduces the cost of production.

(iii)

In case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year:-

(a) The details of technology imported;

(b) The year of import

© Whether the technology been fully 
absorbed

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof;

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development

NIL

(v) Foreign Exchange Earning: 
Foreign Exchange Outgo:

NIL
NIL

31. Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company:

 There has been no company or Institution which became or ceased to be Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate 
Company during the reporting period.

32. Compliance  of Secretarial Standard:

 Your Company has complied with all Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(ICSI) and approved by Central Government from time to time.

33. POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND POLICY ON REMUNERATION:

 Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the policy on appointment of Board Members and policy 
on remuneration of the Directors, KMPs and other employees is attached as Annexure C to this report.

34. Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer 
made statutory auditor or secretarial auditor:

 This clause is Not Applicable as there are no such Qualifications by any such auditor.

35. Other Disclosures:

 Few statutory disclosures the Company is required to do are as under:

 .  The Company has not paid any commission to any of its Directors and hence, the provision of disclosure of  
commission paid to any Director as mentioned in Section 197 (14) is not applicable.
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]

 .  There has been no instance of any revision in the Board's Report or the financial statement under Section  
131(1) of the Act.

 · No application made, or any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during 
the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

 · All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors.

 · The Company does not have any scheme or provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by   
employees/ Directors or by trustees for the benefit of employees/ Directors.

 · No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the 
going concern status and Company's operations in future.

 · The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting 
standards notified under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and other  
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the 
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.

 · There are no unclaimed dividends lies with the company required to be transferred into the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund.

 · There is no fraud reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those which are  
reportable to the Central Government:].

 · There are no instances with respect to the time of one-time settlement with the Banks or Financial  
Institutions.

36. Acknowledgment:

 The Board thanks the Company's distributors, dealers, stockiest, customers, vendors, investors, banks, 
employees and other stakeholders for their continuous support.

 The Board also thanks the Government of India, Governments of various states in India and concerned 
Government departments and agencies for their co-operation.

 The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by all our employees and their families and the 
contribution made by every other member of the SCPL family for making the Company what it is.
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ANNEXURE A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

A. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

 The statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” describe the Company's objectives, 
projections, expectations, estimates or forecasts which may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning 
of the applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or 
implied therein due to risks and uncertainties. Important factors that could influence the Company's operations, 
inter alia, include global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices of finished goods, 
input availability and prices, changes in government regulations, tax laws, economic, political developments within 
the country and other factors such as litigations and industrial relations.

B. COMPANY OVERVIEW:

 Sheetal Cool Products Limited has grown up and got its wings presently spread over 6 major states of India such as 
Gujarat, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Kashmir and Noida (UP) and more than 10 nations abroad like 
USA, Switzerland, Singapore, Australia Africa, Nepal, etc. The company has acquired BRCGS (Brand Reputation 
Compliance for Global Standard), FSMA (Food Safety Modernization Act) & EIC (The Export Inspection Council) 
certificates along with FSSAI, ISO 22000:2018, ISO 9001:2015 etc. For manufacturing more than eight categories of 
food products under a single plant. It is also counted, as per Economic Times, as one among the top 150 fastest 
growing companies in India. Sheetal is in the Top 500 High-Growth Companies of Asia-Pacific 2021 ranking created 
by The Financial Times, Nikkei, and Statista.

C. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 

 GLOBAL ECONOMY:

 Global growth is projected to fall from an estimated 3.5 percent in 2022 to 3.0 percent in both 2023 and 2024. While 
the forecast for 2023 is modestly higher than predicted in the April 2023 World Economic Outlook (WEO), it remains 
weak by historical standards. The rise in central bank policy rates to fight inflation continues to weigh on economic 
activity. Global headline inflation is expected to fall from 8.7 percent in 2022 to 6.8 percent in 2023 and 5.2 percent in 
2024. Underlying (core) inflation is projected to decline more gradually, and forecasts for inflation in 2024 have been 
revised upward. 

 The recent resolution of the US debt ceiling standoff and, earlier this year, strong action by authorities to contain 
turbulence in US and Swiss banking reduced the immediate risks of financial sector turmoil. This moderated 
adverse risks to the outlook. However, the balance of risks to global growth remains tilted to the downside. Inflation 
could remain high and even rise if further shocks occur, including those from an intensification of the war in Ukraine 
and extreme weather-related events, triggering more restrictive monetary policy. Financial sector turbulence 
could resume as markets adjust to further policy tightening by central banks. China’s recovery could slow, in part as 
a result of unresolved real estate problems, with negative cross-border spillovers. Sovereign debt distress could 
spread to a wider group of economies. On the upside, inflation could fall faster than expected, reducing the need for 
tight monetary policy, and domestic demand could again prove more resilient. 

 In most economies, the priority remains achieving sustained disinflation while ensuring financial stability. 
Therefore, central banks should remain focused on restoring price stability and strengthen financial supervision 
and risk monitoring. Should market strains materialize, countries should provide liquidity promptly while mitigating 
the possibility of moral hazard. They should also build fiscal buffers, with the composition of fiscal adjustment 
ensuring targeted support for the most vulnerable. Improvements to the supply side of the economy would 
facilitate fiscal consolidation and a smoother decline of inflation toward target levels. 

D. INDIAN ECONOMY:

 Amidst strong global headwinds, the Indian economy is expected to have recorded a growth of 7.0 per cent in real 
GDP in 2022-23. A sustained recovery in discretionary spending, particularly in contact intensive services, 
restoration of consumer confidence, high festival season spending after two consecutive years of COVID-19 
induced isolation and the government’s thrust on capex provided impetus to the growth momentum. In the second 
half of the year, however, the pace of year-on-year growth moderated because of unfavorable base effects, 
weakening private consumption demand caused by high inflation, slowdown in export growth and sustained input 
cost pressures.
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 The National Statistical Office (NSO) on February 28, 2023 indicated that aggregate demand, measured by real 
GDP, registered a growth of 7.0 per cent in 2022-23 vis-à-vis 9.1 per cent growth a year ago.

 With this, real GDP in level terms surpassed the pre pandemic level of 2019-20 by 9.9 per cent. For the previous three 
years, GDP growth numbers were revised up by 20 bps (2019-20), 80 bps (2020-21) and 40 bps (2021-22) indicating 
that the growth momentum was stronger than what early estimates suggested. While both consumption and 
investment demand gained traction, adverse external demand conditions and the resultant larger deficit in net 
exports dragged down growth in 2022-23. Real GDP growth at 9.6 per cent remained robust during H1:2022-23 with a 
sharp acceleration in momentum from Q1 to Q2:2022- 23. In Q3:2022-23, however, the momentum moderated.

 (Source:  https://m.rbi.org.in/scripts/AnnualReportPublications.aspx?Id=1344

 Industry Structure and developments.

 Overview of Global Dairy Industry 

 Market Overview:

 “Dairy Market: Global Industry Trends, Share, Size, Growth, Opportunity and Forecast 2023-2028,” the global dairy 
market is expected to exhibit a CAGR of 5.79% during 2023-2028. Dairy products are produced by using milk 
harvested from animals. Some of the common dairy items include cheese, ice cream, butter, and yogurt. Dairy 
production plants employ two types of processing, namely heat treatment and dehydration. These processes help 
to extend the shelf life and ensure the safety of the end-product for human consumption. Dairy products are rich in 
carbohydrates, protein, calcium, potassium, phosphorus, riboflavin, and vitamins A, D, and B12. These compounds 
offer several health benefits, like supporting body growth, building and repairing muscle tissues, maintaining 
strong bones, and regulating blood pressure.

 There has been an increase in the demand for ready-to-eat (RTE) products, such as butter, frozen desserts, milk 
powder, and yogurt, which is contributing to the market growth. Subsequently, evolving food habits have further 
led to the establishment of fast-food chains and quick service restaurants (QSR), wherein different varieties of 
cheese, condensed milk, buttermilk, and sour milk are employed as major ingredients. Moreover, the rising 
availability of flavored milk and ice creams in innovative flavors, such as chocolate, strawberry, vanilla, and almond, 
is acting as a growth-inducing factor. Apart from this, key players in developing regions are consistently investing in 
improving the milk procurement network and promoting domestic dairy farming practices, which is creating a 
positive outlook for the market. In addition to this, the advent of modern retail facilities and improvement in cold 
chain logistics, particularly in emerging economies, are further supporting the market growth. A significant 
increase in research and development (R&D) activities in the dairy industry to introduce novel product variants and 
expand existing product portfolios is fueling the market growth further. Other factors, such as rising health 
concerns, increasing population and rapid urbanization and industrialization, are also driving the global dairy 
market growth.

 Overview of Dairy Industry in India:

 The dairy market in India reached a value of INR 14,899.8 billion in 2022. Looking forward, IMARC Group expects the 
market to reach INR 31,185.7 billion by 2028, exhibiting at a CAGR of 13.2 % during 2023-2028. 

 India has been the leading producer and consumer of dairy products worldwide since 1998 with a sustained growth 
in the availability of milk and milk products. Dairy activities form an essential part of the rural Indian economy, 
serving as an important source of employment and income. India also has the largest bovine population in the 
world. However, the milk production per animal is significantly low as compared to the other major dairy producers. 
Moreover, nearly all the dairy produce in India is consumed domestically, with most of it being sold as fluid milk. 
Because of this, the Indian dairy industry holds tremendous potential for value-addition and overall development.

E. KEY BUSINESS SEGMENTS:

 The Company is a diversified, research and development focused food processing Company with operations in 
three key business verticals i.e. milk and milk products, Frozen Foods and namkeen products. The company is 
diversified in other sub-segments like bakery products, sweets and frozen vegetables. Detailed information of two 
key business segments are as below:

 MILK AND MILK PRODUCTS:

 Sheetal began as a milk and milk products company, and is now known for its 100% pure milk ice creams, which set 
it apart from competitors who mostly offer frozen desserts.Sheetal has three ice cream brands: Sheetal, J'Adore, 
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and Rich Cream Ice Creams.Sheetal brand offers over 170 products in a variety of categories, including cups, 
premium cups, ripple special, sugar free, jamel lassi, kid's special, candies, kulfi, cones, novelties, classic series, 
sandwich, cakes, tubs, party pack, and catering pack. J'adore Ice Creams has over 73 flavors in the following 
categories: cups, cones, candy, bar, sticks, naturals, novelties, cakes, pastry, and take home. Rich Creams come in 
over 10 varieties.Sheetal Cool Products Ltd also offers a variety of milk and milk products, including:Sheetal Gold, 
Sheetal Silver, Sheetal Taza, Sheetal Slim N Trim, Sheetal Tea Special, Sheetal Anytime Tea, Sheetal Curd, Sheetal 
Buttermilk, Sheetal Butter. These products are all made with high-quality ingredients and are stored in a way that 
preserves their freshness.

 NAMKEEN, BAKERY PRODUCTS AND FROZEN ITEMS:

 The namkeen segment is having a wide range of 88+ varieties with delicious taste , quality and hygiene at a 
reasonable cost is its remarkable trademark. Sheetal Frozen Food Segment has been established with remarkable 
characteristics of Sheetal Cool Products. Pizza, Pav bhaji, varieties of Parathas , Vada Pav, Chinese Bhel, etc are 
some of the delicious frozen food products from our manufacturing unit. The bakery products are Cookies, Khari, 
Rusk, Bread, Pav, etc. There are also differently flavored sweets, daily used frozen vegetables etc.

F. BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOKS:

 The Budget 2022-23 seeks to lay the foundation of the Indian economy over the 'Amrit Kaal' period of the next 25 
years leading to 100 years of independence in 2047. The government is emphasizing the role of PM GatiShakti, 
Inclusive Development, Productivity Enhancement & Investment, Sunrise Opportunities, Energy Transition and 
Climate Action, as well as Financing of Investments.

 India is one of the fastest growing economies globally and the Government of India is determined to make it a five 
trillion economy by 2025. A growing working population and rapid urbanization will drive strong consumption 
growth, boosting demand for dairy and dairy products in India. Product innovation is always needed as consumers 
not only prefer safe ingredients and additives but also useful ones. We creates opportunities mainly in product 
innovation, specialized products, and product extensions for the various existing food processors. Consumers 
have become aggressive in demanding better, safer, and convenient food products and are willing to pay a higher 
price for health and convenience.

 The performance of the company is expected to improve with stabilized economic situation in India and across the 
globe. We expect this trend to continue at least in the foreseeable future. Hence, the Company does not see any 
medium to long term risks in the company's ability to continue as a going concern and in meeting its liabilities as and 
when they fall due.

G. CHALLENGES/ THREATS:

 Unseasonal Rainfall Impact: One of the significant setbacks we encountered this year was the unexpected and 
untimely rainfall in Gujarat, which is one of the largest ice cream markets in India. Sales for the last quarter of this 
year experienced a sharp decline as compared to the corresponding period in the previous year. Typically, March 
marks the onset of warmer weather and a surge in ice cream sales, but these unusual weather conditions disrupted 
our sales cycle.

 
 Despite these formidable obstacles, our commitment to delivering the highest-quality products at exceptionally 

competitive prices remains unwavering. We are well-prepared to confront and overcome these challenges as we 
continue our journey forward.

H. Segment – wise or product – wise performance:

 Segment Reporting as defined in Ind AS 108 is not applicable since the Company operates in only one segment.

I. Risk and Concern

 1. The Company is facing risk and concern with respect to Susceptibility of profitability to changes in 
government policies and environmental conditions along with volatility in raw material prices Milk prices: 
Milk Prices are sensitive to government policies as marked by Minimum Support Price and other 
regulations. Milk being a major raw material for SCPL, makes it susceptible to government regulations and 
to risks related to volatility in global milk powder prices. The key raw materials for manufacturing ice-cream 
are skimmed milk powder, milk, butter, and cream, which the company procures from local dairies or 
farmers. 
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 2. The Company is facing risk and concern with respect to Seasonality of demand as well as challenges 
arising from changing consumer tastes and preferences.

 3. The Company is facing risk and concern with respect to High competition in the ice cream segment from 
the organized as well as unorganized markets: Indian ice-cream market is largely dominated by un-
organized players with innumerable small and seasonal companies doing the business in various regions. 
Further, there are large number of big and medium-sized ice-cream companies in India which leads to a 
highly competitive environment. Although, there is a huge opportunity for industry players since India is 
one of the fastest growing markets for ice-cream consumption due to its large population and growing per 
capita income; however, the company faces high competition from various other established brands like 
Amul, Havmor, Kwality Walls, Cream Bell, Mother Dairy, Vadilal, Top 'N' Town, Dinshaw's, etc in its various 
key markets However, Company is equipped to meet the challenges by better marketing tactics and 
effective management to overcome all such challenges.

J. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

 The Company has in place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with its size and nature of 
business. The system provides reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operational information, 
complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company and ensuring compliance with 
corporate policies.

 The Company has availed the services of independent professional firm for Internal Audit, which checks the 
effectiveness of the internal controls with an objective to provide an independent, objective, and reasonable 
assurance of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk management, control, and governance 
processes. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit activity are approved by the Audit Committee. Internal 
Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee of Board. Audit Committee periodically reviews the Internal Audit 
Reports and issues guidance and advice. The Audit Committee also seeks the views/opinions of statutory auditors 
on the adequacy of the internal control systems in the Company. Minutes of the Audit Committee are put up to the 
Board of Directors. The Company's Audit Committee reviews adherence to internal control systems, internal audit 
reports and legal compliances. This committee reviews all the results of the Company and recommends the same 
to the Board for its approval.

K. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES:

 Our people are our strongest asset. The Company invests in building best-in-class teams, led by exceptional 
professionals. Over the years, the Company has nurtured a meritocratic, empowering, and caring culture that 
encourages excellence. The Company encourages the development of talent by providing its people with 
opportunities to sharpen their capabilities, encouraging innovation, lateral thinking, and developing multiple skills. 
Through this approach, it prepares its people for future leadership roles.

 The management is focused on a transformational Human Resources Strategy, which supports the constant 
reinforcement of our competitive advantage. During the year, the Company's industrial relations remained cordial 
with its employees. 

 The Company has 1534 employees as of the closure of the Financial Year.  

L. PROGRESS DURING THE YEAR: 

 The company has taken certain steps in the last year to increase the growth which resulted into maintain the 
turnover. Highlights of certain steps as follows:

 In a significant step forward, Sheetal successfully entered a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
esteemed Adani Group, opening new avenues for collaboration and growth.

 Following the successful completion of our US export, we have seen a significant increase in demand for our 
products. We have also started exporting to other countries, such as Singapore, Japan, South Korea, Seychelles, 
and more. This has allowed us to win the hearts of millions of people with our delicious products.

 To meet the growing demand, we have expanded our distribution network and now have channel partners in over 6 
more states. We are committed to providing our products to as many people as possible, and we believe that this 
expansion will help us achieve our goal.
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]

M. Financial Performance: Comparison of F.Y 2022-2023 with F.Y 2021-22.

 Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance is discussed in the main part of the Report. 

 Details of Key Financial Ratio are given below:
 Reason for change for more than 25%

 1. Inventory Turnover Ratio

  Due to the increase in inventories during the year, inventory turnover ratio has decreased in the current 
year.

 2. Interest Coverage Ratio 

  In CY the interest coverage ratio is decreased, as the interest expenses is increased during the year on 
account of maximum utilization of Company's short-term funds.

N. Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year along with 
a detailed explanation thereof: Return on Net Worth is decreased in current year, as the average net worth of the 
company is increased as compared to previous year.

 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

 In the preparation of financial statements, there is no treatment different from that prescribed in an Accounting 
Standard has been followed during the financial year under review.

Ratios 

Current Ratio (In times)
Debt-Equity Ratio (In times)
Inventory Turnover Ratio (In times)
Debtors’ Turnover Ratio (In times)
Interest Coverage Ratio (In times)
Net Profit Ratio 
Operating Profit Margin
Return on Net worth

1.77
0.92
1.60
28.42
6.00
6.01%
16.67%
24.51%

1.76
1.01
2.24
24.85
8.24
5.61%
14.40%
28.64%

2022-23 2021-22 Change %
Details of
Significant Change

0.89%
-9.64%
-28.59%
14.39%
-27.18%
7.13%
15.80%
-14.44%

-
-
Refer Note No. 1
-
Refer Note No.2
-
-
-
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ANNEXURE B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended on March 31, 2023.

1.  COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

 At, Sheetal Cool Products Limited (SCPL), Corporate Governance has been an integral part of the way we are doing 
our business. As a good corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on 
conscience, transparent, fairness, professionalism, and accountability in building confidence of its various 
stakeholders in it thereby paving the way for its long-term success. The Company believes that good Corporate 
Governance emerges from the application of the best and sound management practices and compliance with the 
laws coupled with adherence to the highest standards of transparency and business ethics.

 The Company places great emphasis on values such as empowerment and integrity of its employees, safety of the 
employees and communities surrounding our plant and other locations. The company manages its affairs in a fair 
manner by giving utmost importance to transparency in decision making process, ethical dealings with all, and a 
pollution-free clean environment. It is governed by a set of principles, initiatives and management structures that 
confer an integrated vision and a great deal of agility in decision-making. It also employs the best practices, and it 
prioritizes a long-term strategic vision of its businesses and the collective interest, focusing on results and 
meritocracy. The way the Company operates is expressed in its Vision and its Values, in its Code of Conduct, and in 
its Environment, Social and Governance Policy & Sustainability Principles. Such elements are the organization's 
guidelines for its businesses, objectives, and challenges.

 The Company has complied with all applicable guidelines & regulations as stipulated by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India pertaining to the Corporate Governance.

2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

 Composition:
 Presently there are six Directors on Board consisting of 

 
 The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge, experience and enables 

the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. The composition of the 
Board of Directors is in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the relevant Rules framed thereunder.

 Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva, resigned from the office of director w.e.f. August 25, 2022 and Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai appointed 
as an Additional Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. August 25, 2022 and has been regularized in the 9th 
AGM of the company.

 The composition of the Board, category, the attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings during the year and at 
the last Annual General Meeting and also number of other directorship and other committee Memberships are 
given below:

Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, (DIN: 06616061) 
Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva, (DIN: 06616078) 
Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva, (DIN: 06616086) 
Mr. Ajay V Mandanka, (DIN: 07939036) 
Mrs. Kiran N Gajera, (DIN: 07939020) 
Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai, (DIN: 09713219) 

Chairman and Managing Director
Whole Time Director
Whole Time Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
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SR.
No.

Name of Director Name Company in which he/
she is director

Type of Directorship

Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuva
Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva
Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva
Mr. Dakubhai Bhuva*

Mr. Ajay V Mandanka
Mrs. Kiran N Gajera
Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai**

Sheetal Cool Products Limited
Sheetal Cool Products Limited
Sheetal Cool Products Limited
Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Sheetal Cool Products Limited
Sheetal Cool Products Limited
Sheetal Cool Products Limited

1.
2.
3.
4.

5.
6.
7.

Managing Director
Whole Time Director
Whole Time Director
Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

 ^These numbers exclude the Directorship / Committee Membership held in private limited companies, foreign 
companies, companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 ^^Committee includes the Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Public Company

  Disclosures pertaining to directors:

 The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 introduced 
requirement to disclose separately the names of the listed entities, where the persons is a director and the 
category is of directorship. The details of all directors are as below:

 *Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva, Resigned w.e.f. 25.08.2022.
              **Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai was appointed on w.e.f. 25.08.2022 and regularized as Independent Director in the 9th AGM.

Number 
of Board
Meetings
attended 

Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva

Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva

Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva

Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva*

Mr. Ajay V Mandanka

Mrs. Kiran N Gajera

Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai

Promoter/Managing
Director/Executive

Promoter/Whole Time
Director/Executive

Promoter/Whole Time
Director/Executive

Non-Executive

Independent/
Non-Executive
Independent/
Non-Executive
Independent/
Non-Executive

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

0

2

2

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

13

13

13

05

13

13

08

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Name of 
Directors

Category 
(Executive/ 
Nonexecutive/ 
Independent

Number of 
Directorship^ 
held in other 
Company’s Board 

Listed 
Com-
pany

Other 
Com-
pany 

Number of 
Membership/ 
Chairmanship of 
respective 
Committee^^

Memb-
ership

Chairm-
anship

Whether 
last AGM 
attended 
or not? 
(Yes/No)

No of 
Share 
Held

238800

848550

1815450

506250

Nil

Nil

Nil
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 No. of Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2022-23 and dates on which held:

 The Board held Thirteen meetings during the Financial Year 2022-23 i.e., on:Relationship between Directors:

 Relationship between Directors:

 Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva & Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva are inter-related as real brothers, Mr.               
Dakubhai J Bhuva being the father of all above three brothers.

 Familiarization programs and the terms & conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013 & Listing Regulations are updated on the Company's website 
https://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/familarization-programme-of-id-2022-23.pdf.

 No shares or convertible instruments has been held by any non- executive directors.

 Skills / expertise / competencies of Directors:

 As per the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company have identified the below mentioned skills/ 
expertise / competencies in the context of the business and the sector in which the Company is operating, for the 
Company to function effectively:

Name of the Director Expertise in specific functional areas 	
Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuva   

 
  

Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva
  

 

Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva
 

  

Mr. Dakubhai Bhuva

  
 

Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka

 

Mrs. Kiranben Gajera  

  

He has expertise in business development, sales promotion, marketing, 
strategy planning, administration and general management.

He is having expertise in franchise business, corporate relationship 
management, liasioning, external business affairs, corporate social 
responsibility etc.

He has expertise in production management. He is looking after overall 
production activity with his core team members. He is backbone for 
development of new products.

He is the co-founder of the business having wide experience of product 
testing and business development

He is having experience of packaging management and issues in 
relation to packaging.

He is having experience of business administration, women 
empowerment and management.

Mr. Vijaybhai Desai He has vast experience in business development and management for 
trading and manufacturing

30

Sheetal Cool Products Limited   |   Annual Report 2022-23

October 13, 2022
November 15 2022
December 20, 2022
January 20, 2023
March 31, 2023

Amreli
Amreli
Amreli
Amreli
Amreli

9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

April 18, 2022
May 16, 2022
July 04, 2022
July 06, 2022
August 25, 2022
September 05, 2022
September 24, 2022
September 28, 2022

Amreli
Amreli
Amreli
Amreli
Amreli
Amreli
Amreli
Amreli

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

SR.No. Date of Board Meetings Place of Meeting



 Confirmation regarding Independent Directors
 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the declaration given by the 

Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board hereby 
confirms that all the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and 
are independent of the management. Further, the Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the 
Company possess requisite qualifications, experience (including proficiency) and expertise in their respective 
fields and that they hold highest standards of integrity.

 In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they 
are not aware of any circumstances or situations which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or 
impact their ability to discharge their duties.  

 During the year 2022-23, no independent director of the company has resigned before the expiry of his/her tenure.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

 The Company has an Audit Committee at the Board level with the powers and role that are in accordance with 
Listing Regulation and Companies Act, 2013.

A. Terms of Reference:

 The Audit Committee acts on the terms of reference given by the Board pursuant to Section 177 of the Act and 
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee acts as a link between the Management, the Statutory 
Auditors, the Internal Auditors, the Cost Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and the Board of Directors. The scope of the 
functioning of the Audit Committee is to review, from time to time, the internal control system & procedures and its 
adequacy. The Committee reviews accounting policies and financial reporting system & procedures of the 
Company. It ensures that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible and also such other 
functions as may be prescribed from time to time by Regulatory Authorities. The Audit Committee is vested with 
the necessary powers to achieve its objectives.

B. Composition:

 The Audit Committee presently consists of Three Non-executive Directors with a majority of Independent 
Directors. The Audit Committee meets regularly as stipulated in Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulation. The 
Executive Directors, Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the meetings of the 
Committee. The Secretarial Auditors and Cost Auditor are also invited to attend the Audit Committee Meetings, as 
and when required.

C. Name of the Members & Chairman at the meetings and their attendance during the year:

 The details of members and chairman of the Audit Committee, meetings held during the year and attendance of 
the members are as under:

 During the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, Nine Meetings of the Audit Committee were held i.e., 
 on 18th April 2022, 30th May 2022, 25th August 2022, 24th September 2022, 28th September 2022, 13th October 

2022, 28th October 2022, 20th January 2023 and 31st March 2023.
 

 *Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva, Resigned w.e.f. 25.08.2022

Name of Directors 
Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka 
Mrs. Kiranben Gajera 
Mr. Dakubhai Bhuva*
Mr. Vijaybhai Desai.

Chairman 
Member 
Member
Member 

9
9
3
6

Position Meeting attended
1
2
3
4

Sr. No.
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4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

A. Terms of Reference:

 The terms of reference and Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as per the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, which includes Devising a policy on Board 
diversity, Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal, determination of qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the 
Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees and 
also formulating performance evaluation criteria. The Committee also ensures equity, fairness and consistency. 
The recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are considered and approved by the 
Board, subject to the approval of Members, wherever necessary.

 The policy is framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, which includes 
performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is disclosed on the website of the Company at 
https://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/nomination-and-remuneration-policy.pdf.

B. Composition:

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently consists of Three Non-Executive Directors consisting of 
Three Independent directors. The Chairman is an Independent Non-Executive Director.

C. Name of the Members & Chairman at the meetings and their attendance during the year:

 The details of members and chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, meetings held during the 
year and attendance of the members are as under:

 During the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, One Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
were held i.e. on August 25,2022

 *Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva, Resigned w.e.f. 25.08.2022.

D. Policy for selection and appointment of Directors and their remuneration:

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has adopted a Policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner 
of selection of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration are as under:

 i. Appointment criteria and qualification: The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, 
qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director in terms of Diversity 
Policy of the Board and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

  A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is 
considered for the appointment of KMP (other than Managing / Whole time Director) or Senior 
Management Personnel. Further, for administrative convenience, the appointment of KMP (other than 
Managing / Whole time Director) or Senior Management, the Managing Director is authorized to identify 
and appoint a suitable person for such position. However, if the need be, the Managing Director may consult 
the Committee / Board for further directions / guidance.

 ii. Remuneration Policy: The Company has a standard remuneration policy for the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors, which is periodically reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, are 
as under.

  1. The remuneration / commission / sitting fees, as the case may be, to the Non-Executive / 
Independent Director, shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

Name of Directors 
Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka 
Mrs. Kiranben Gajera 
Mr. Dakubhai Bhuva*
Mr. Vijaybhai Desai.

Chairman 
Member 
Member
Member 

1
1
1
0

Position Meeting attended
1
2
3
4

Sr. No.
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thereunder for the time being in force or as may be decided by the Committee / Board / 
Shareholders.

  2. An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company unless otherwise  
permitted in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulation, as amended from time to 
time.

  3. Non-Executive Directors are presently paid a sitting fee of Rs. 1,000/- per Board Meeting, Rs. 1,000/- 
per Audit Committee Meeting, Rs. 1,000/- per Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting, 
Rs. 1,000/- per Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting and all Meetings were fixed by the 
Board of Directors from time to time.

  4. The remuneration / compensation / commission, etc., as the case may be, to the Managing / Whole 
Time Director will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. 
Subject to the prior / post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, 
wherever required and shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Rules made 
thereunder.

  5. Further, the Managing Director of the Company is authorized to decide the remuneration of KMP 
(other than Managing / Whole time Director) and Senior Management, and which shall be decided 
by the Managing Director based on the standard market practice and prevailing HR policies of the 
Company.

  6. The Board has approved the Nomination and Remuneration Policy which has been uploaded on the 
Company's website.

E. Details of Remuneration to all the Directors:

                   The Details of remuneration/sitting fees paid/payable to the Directors for the financial year 2022-23 are as under:

 Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva, Resigned w.e.f. 25.08.2022 

 Service Contract and Notice Period: The appointment of Bhupatbhai Bhuva managing Director, Sanjaybhai Bhuva 
Whole time director and Dineshbhai Bhuva Whole time Director of the Company is for the 5 years, terminable by 
notice, as prescribed in contract, in writing by either side.The Board of Directors of the Company has authority to 
decide Severance fees payable to Managing Director and Whole Time Directors.

 There were not any performance-linked incentives paid to Executive Directors. The Company has not formulated 
any scheme for giving any stock options to the employees. Hence no stock options have been granted to the 
Executive Directors during the year under review. Criteria of making payment to Non-executive Director as available 
on the website of the Company i.e., https://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Sheetal-criteria-of-
making-payments-to-neds.pdf. The Company has not made any payment to the non-executive director of the 
Company except Sitting Fees. There are no pecuniary transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the 

Salary, 
allowances, 
Perquisites 
and other 
benefits

Stock 
Option

PensionName of the Director Performance 
linked Income 
/Bonus 
/Commission 
Paid or Payable

Sitting 
Fees 
Paid

Executive Directors
Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva 
Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva 
Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva 
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva*
Mr. Ajaykumar Madanka
Mrs. Kiranben Gajera

19.20
16.80
18.00

0.09
0.25
0.25
0.16Mrs. Vijaybhai Desai

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
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Company during the financial year under review except as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18 are 
disclosed in the notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements.

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

 The Stakeholders Relationship Committee, amongst the areas, mentioned in Regulation 20 of the Listing 
Regulations and Section 178 of the Act is ensuring expeditious redressal of shareholders' and investors' complaints 
like non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of share certificates upon transfer of shares, dematerialization/re-
materialization, transfer/ transmission, split/consolidation of shares etc.

 During the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, Two Meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was 
held i.e. on 13th December, 2022 and 31th March, 2023.

 The details of Composition of the Committee are as under:

 *Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva, Resigned w.e.f. 25.08.2022. 

 Mr. Mahesh Purohit, Company Secretary was the compliance officer till May 15, 2023, and Mr. Bharat P. Trivedi, 
company secretary is the compliance officer w.e.f August 16, 2023.

 The details of investors' complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year 2022-23 are as under:

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

 As the Company fall under the criteria mentioned in the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however as per sub-section 9 of section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 where the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the functions of such Committee provided under this 
section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of such company. In the financial year under 
review the amount to be spent by the Company did not exceed Rs. 50 lakhs hence the Company has dissolved the 
Corporate Social responsibility committee.

7.  INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in the year without 
attendance of the Non-Independent Directors. Independent Directors at their meeting held on 30 May 2022. has 
reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors (Including the Chairman of the Company) and 
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company and the 
Management. All the independent Directors have attended the meeting.

 All the Independent Directors meet the criteria of Independence as mandated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 A. Location and time where the last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were held:

Name of Directors 
Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka 
Mrs. Kiranben Gajera 
Mr. Dakubhai Bhuva*
Mr. Vijaybhai Desai.

Chairman 
Member 
Member
Member 

2
2
0
2

Position Meeting attended
1
2
3
4

Sr. No.

No. of investors' complaints
received during the Year

No. of investors' complaints
Resolved during the Year

Investors' complaints pending
at the end of the year

Nil Nil Nil
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Financial Year
Appointment of Mr. Vijaybhai Desai (Independent Director) for a
term of 5 years.
Re-Appointment of Mr. Ajaykumar V Mandanka (Independent
Director) for a Second term of five years.
Re-Appointment of Mrs. Kiranben N Gajera (Independent
Director) for a second term of five years.
Substitution of Main Object Clause of the Memorandum of
Association.
No Special Resolution passed.
Increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva,
Managing Director
Increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva,
Whole Time Director.
Increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva,
Whole Time Director

AGM/EGM Date

2021-22

2020-21

2019-20

Special Resolution

28/09/2022

24/09/2021

28/12/2020

Financial Year
AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio
Visual Means (OAVM)
AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio
Visual Means (OAVM)
AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio
Visual Means (OAVM)

11.00 Hours

16.00 Hours

16.00 Hours

AGM Date Time
2021-22

2020-21

2019-20

28/09/2022

24/09/2021

28/12/2020

Location 

 B. Special Resolutions passed in previous three AGM:

 C. Special resolution passed through Postal Ballot (Notice dated July 06, 2022):
 
  Pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 and 22 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Reg.44 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being 
in force) the Postal Ballot Notice was sent to the members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited to transact the 
following special business by passing resolution inter-alia the following special resolution through Postal 
Ballot or Electronic voting (e-voting).

  1. Migration and listing/trading of equity shares of the company from SME platform of BSE limited 
(BSE SME) to main board of BSE limited and national stock exchange of India limited.

  The voting period commenced on and from July 09, 2022(Saturday) and ended on August 07, 2022(Sunday). 
An e-voting facility was also provided to the members. Mr. Hardik Hudda Practicing Company Secretary 
(ICSI Membership No: A39621, CP No: 14697) was appointed as the Scrutinizer for conducting the postal 
ballot voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

  The Company had complied with all the procedural aspects applicable for postal ballot as per the 
provisions of law cited above and such other applicable provisions.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

 A. Financial Results:

  The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Results are published in widely circulated national and local dailies 
such as The Economic Times, Gujarati and English Edition and are also displayed on the website of the 
Company www.scplco.com.
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 B. News Releases, Presentations etc:

  Official News releases, press releases and presentation made to the Analysts, institutional investors etc.(if 
any) are displayed on the website of the Company www.scplco.com and are submitted to the Stock 
Exchange in terms of the requirement of Listing Regulations.

 C. Website:

  The Company’s Website www.scplco.com  contains a separate dedicated section namely “Investors’ 
Relations” where the useful information for the Shareholders is available.

 D. The Management Discussion & Analysis report forms part of the Annual Report, which is posted to all the 
members of the Company.

10. DISCLOSURES:

 a. Related Party Transactions: Transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting 
Standard 18 disclosed in the notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements. All the transactions 
with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. In terms of 
Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations the Company has started obtaining prior approval of the Audit 
Committee for entering into any transaction with related parties. The Audit Committee granted omnibus 
approval for certain transactions to be entered into with the related parties, during the year. Statements 
giving details of all related party transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted is 
placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for their approval on a quarterly basis. Policy 
on dealing with Related Par ty Transactions can be viewed at the Company's website at 
https://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/RELATED-PARTY-TRANSACTIONS-RTP-
POLICY.pdf.These transactions are not likely to have any conflict with the Company’s interest.

 b. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock 
Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authorities or any matter related to capital markets during the last three 
years: No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any matters related to capital 
markets in the last three years.

 c. Whistleblower Policy (Vigil Mechanism): The Company has formulated its Whistleblower Policy in 
conformity with the Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulation and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
provide a mechanism for directors and employees of the company to approach the Ethics Counselor/ 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company for the purpose of dealing with any instance of fraud and 
mismanagement, if any, and also ensure that whistleblowers are protected from retribution, whether 
within or outside the organization. The Company's Whistleblower Policy is on the Company's website at 
www.scplco.com. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee during the year.

 d. Business risk evaluation and managing such risk is an ongoing process within the organization.

  The Board is regularly briefed of risks assessed and the measures adopted by the company to mitigate the 
risks. The Company has laid down the procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment 
and risk mitigation mechanism, which is periodically reviewed and reported to the Board of Directors by 
senior executives.

  The Company has ensured commodity price risk, foreign exchange risk however it is not engaged in any  
Commodity hedging Activity.

 e. Company has not received any complaint under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the year and no complaint is pending at the year 
end.

 f. The Company does not have any material subsidiary as at closure of financial year under review, however 
the company’s policy of determining material subsidiary is available at https://www.scplco.com/wp- 
content/ uploads/2023/08/policy-for-determining-material-subsidiary.pdf.

 g. During the financial year under review the Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment 
or qualified institutional placement.
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 h. There were no instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any Committees of the 
Board during the Financial Year ended 31st March 2023.

 i. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount: NA.

 j. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements of 
Listing Regulation:

                   Mandatory/ Non-Mandatory Requirements:
 
  i. During the year the Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

  ii. There is no non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub para 2 to 10 
of Clause C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

  iii. The Company has during the financial year ended on 31.03.2023 has partially adopted non-
mandatory (discretionary) requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

  iv. The Company has generally complied with corporate governance requirements specified in 
regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of Sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

11. RISK MANAGEMENT AND IT’S COMMITTEE.

 The management of the Company reviews the risk management processes and implementation of its risk 
mitigation plans. The processes are continuously improved, Also the Company is not mandatorily required to 
constitute a Risk Management Committee as per Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

12. GENERAL CODE OF CONDUCT:

 The Company has formulated and implemented a General Code of Conduct (copy available on Company's website 
at www.scplco.com) for all its Directors and Senior Management of the Company in compliance with Listing 
Regulation. All the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the 
said Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. A declaration by the Chairman & Managing 
Director affirming compliance with the said Code of Conduct by Board Members and Senior Management is 
annexed at the end of the Report and forms part of this Report as annexure B2.

13. CODES OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

 The Board of Directors at their meeting held on March 29, 2019, has revised policy for code of practices and 
procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information as per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and the Rules made thereunder. The said policy can be accessed on the 
Company's website at www.scplco.com. The necessary preventive actions, including Closure of Trading Window 
around the time of any price sensitive events or information, are taken. All the Designated Persons have given 
declaration affirming compliance with the said Code for the year ended March 31, 2023.

14. CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION:

 In accordance with the requirements of Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulation, a certificate from Managing Director 
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, on the financial statements of the Company was placed before the 
Board and the same is annexed to this Annual Report as Annexure B3.

15. DISCLOSURES OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPTS):

 The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 have introduced, as a 
part of the “related party disclosure” in the annual report, disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any 
person or entity belonging to the promoter or promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the listed 
entity. There are no transactions that occurred in the FY 2022-23 as defined in the regulations.
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16. DISCLOSURE ON AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES RENDERED BY THE AUDITOR:

 The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 requires disclosing total 
fees paid to auditors for audit and non-audit services to improve transparency. The total fee paid to the Statutory 

 Auditor during the FY 2022-23 is as under:

 Fee paid for audit services: Rs. 4.20 Lacs
 Fee paid for Non-Audit Service: Rs. 1.05 Lacs 
 Total fee paid: Rs.5.25 Lacs.
 See note no 29.2 of Audit Report.

17. Secretarial Audit for Reconciliation of Capital:
 
 As stipulated by SEBI, Practicing Company Secretaries carry out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted 

capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 
and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the report there on is submitted to 
the Stock Exchange(s) where shares of the Company are listed. The audit confirms that the total listed and paid-up 
capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and 
CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form.

18. Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

 
 All the Directors of the Company have submitted a declaration stating that they are not debarred or disqualified, by 

the virtue of any order issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other 
Competent or Statutory Authority, from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies. Shri Hardik 
Hudda, of M/s. Hardik Hudda & Associates Practicing Company Secretaries (ICSI Membership No. A39621, COP: 
14697), has submitted a certificate to this effect, which being enclosed at the end of this Report as Annexure B1.

19. GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDER:

Friday, September 29, 2023, at 12:00 pm at through two-way
Video Conferencing ('VC') facility or other audio-visual means 
('OAVM')
Financial year of the Company Commence from 01stApril, 2022
and ends on 31stMarch, 2023.
BSE Ltd. (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001
National Stock Exchange Limited of India.
Exchange Plaza, Plot. No C/1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East) Mumbai 400051
Company has paid listing fees to BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India.
For fully paid shares: INE501Y01019
BSE: 540757
NSE: SCPL
Sheetal Cool Products Limited, Plot No. 75 to 81, GIDC Estate, 
Amreli 365601.
The Company's plant is only located at Plot No. 75-81, G.I.D.C. 
Estate, Amreli, Gujarat 365601.
NA.
September 22, 2023
Mr. Bharat P. Trivedi
Email ID: cs@sheetalicecream.com Contact No. 9316733077
KFin Technologies Limited.
Karvy Selenium Tower- B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana –500032,
Tel:040 – 67162222, Email: einward.ris@karvy.com,
Website: www.kfintech.com

Day, Date, Time and Venue of 
AGM

Financial Year

Listing on Stock Exchanges

Listing Fees

ISIN No.
Scrip/Stock Code/Symbol

Registered Office

Plant Locations 

Dividend Payment Date
Record Date / Cut off Date 
Compliance Officer

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
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20. Dematerialization of Shares, Registrar & Transfer Agent & Share Transfer System

 A. Share Transfer System: The Company's shares being in compulsory dematerialization are transferable 
through the depository system. However, shares in the physical form are processed by the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agents. In order to expedite the process, the Board of Directors has delegated the authority 
to it to approve the share transfer/transmission and accordingly, it approves the transfer/transmission of 
shares as and when required. The share transfer process is reviewed and noted by the Board/Committee.

 B. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: The equity shares of the Company are available in dematerialized 
form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd., 
(CDSL). Company having 100 99.99% shareholding in dematerialized form.

 C. Investors Correspondence: All shareholders' queries are sent to the Company at the Registered Office Plot 
No. 75 to 81, GIDC Estate, Amreli 365601.

 D. Disclosure with respect to Demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account of shares: Not 
Applicable as only 1 share is on Physical mode and will be Dematerialized on the basis of letter of 
Confirmation if required demanded by such shareholder. 

 E. The Company had not issued global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or any 
convertible instruments.

 F. During the year under Review the company has received the credit rating BBB/Stable (Triple B) with Stable 
Outlook for Long Term facilities and Short-Term facilities of the Company from the CRISIL Ratings Agency. 
More particulars are described in the Director's report.

21. Market price data- high, low during each month in last financial year; 

 Note: As company was listed on BSE SME till November 2022 and then after Migrated to Main board according to 
which price is been mentioned, Also Company got listed on NSE for the first time on 22nd November 2022 and 
therefore there is no Market Price data available till October 2022.

Month SCPL (BSE)  SCPL (NSE)
High Price Low Price 

Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22

Aug-22
Sep-22
Oct-22
Nov-22
Dec-22
Jan-23
Feb-23
Mar-23

548.00
580.00
490.00
524.70
550.00
558.90
632.00
706.60
682.75
647.75
594.65
595.00

395.00
396.90
386.15
452.15
450.00
451.00
493.05
563.50
521.70
533.45
512.45
497.30

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

694.00
682.00
652.75
595.00
595.30

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

571.10
523.00
534.90
512.80
496.70

High Price Low Price 
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22. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as S&P BSE SME IPO and BSE Sensex:

 Comparison with S&P BSE SME IPO

 *Note: Company was listed on BSE SME till November 2022,and then after it was migrated to BSE Main Board; hence 
comparison is made accordingly.

23. Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2023:

Holdings

1-500
501-1000
1001-2000
2001-3000
3001-4000
4001-5000
5001-10000
10001-20000
20001 & Above
Total

5607
450
228

52
18
18
39
24
34

6470

86.66
6.96
3.52
0.80
0.28
0.28
0.60
0.37
0.53

100.00

417816
350216
343780
131578

62752
84024

265224
326990

8517620
10500000

3.98
3.34
3.27
1.25
0.60
0.80
2.53
3.11

81.12
100.00

No. of 
Shareholder 

% of 
Shareholdings 

% age No. of shares

Comparison with BSE SENSEX
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24. Categories of Shareholding as on 31st March 2023

25. Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate Governance requirement as specified in Listing Regulation:

 During the Financial Year under review, The Company affirm that all the applicable requirements of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are complied with.

Category
Promoters & Promoter’s Group 
NR & NRI’s 
Financial Institutes/Banks 
Body Corporate 
Clearing Members 
Public

68,87,400
1,28,749

0
4,63,334

2901
30,17,616

65.59
1.23

0
4.41
0.03

28.73

% of Shareholdings No. of shares held

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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ANNEXURE B1

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited
GIDC Plot No. 75 to 81,
Amreli, Gujarat, INDIA 365601

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Sheetal Cool 
Products Limited having CIN L15205GJ2013PLC077205 and having registered office at GIDC Plot No. 75 to 81 Amreli, 
Gujarat, INDIA 365601 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company and its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors 
of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 
Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate 
is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Name of Director

Bhupatbhai Dakubhai Bhuva
Dinesh Kumar Dakubhai Bhuva
Sanjay Dakubhai Bhuva
Kiranben Nileshbhai Gajera
Ajaykumar Vipulbhai Mandanka
Vijay Bhagwanbhai Desai

Date of appointment in CompanyDIN

06616061
06616078
06616086
07939020
07939036
09713219

14/10/2013
14/10/2013
14/10/2013
04/09/2017
04/09/2017
25/08/2022

Sr. No.

1
2
3
4
5
6

  For Hardik Hudda & Associates,
  Practicing Company Secretaries

Date: September 01, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

CS Hardik Hudda
                                                                                 Proprietor

                                  Membership No: A39621 CP No.: 14697
Peer Review No. 1805/2022
UDIN: A039621E000907081
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ANNEXURE B2

DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT

To, 
The Shareholders,
Affirmation of Compliance with Code of Conduct

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby declare that the 
Board of Directors of the Company has received affirmation on compliance with the Code of Conduct from all the Directors 
and the Senior Management Personnel of the Company, as applicable to them, for the financial year ended 31st March 2023.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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ANNEXURE B3

MD/CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

To 
The Board of Directors,
SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED

We the undersigned certify to the Board that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, and 
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 (i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading.

 (ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we 
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal 
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee-

 (i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

 (ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the  
notes to the financial statements; and

 (iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over 
financial reporting.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: April 20, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 
[DIN: 06616061]

For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Jinal Naria    
Chief Financial Officer 
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ANNEXURE B4

CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES/ AUDITORS REGARDING
COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To 
the Shareholders, 
Sheetal Cool Products Limited,

I, Hardik Hudda, Proprietor, Hardik Hudda & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, the Secretarial Auditor of Sheetal 
Cool Products Limited (“the Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the 
Company, for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) 
and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
amendments from time to time (the Listing Regulations).

Management’s Responsibility

1. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure 
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility

1. My responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for 
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

2. I have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing 
reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

Opinion

1. Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to me 
and there presentations provided by the Management, I certify that the Company has complied with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C 
and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2023.

2. I state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

  For Hardik Hudda & Associates,
  Practicing Company Secretaries

Date: September 01, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

CS Hardik Hudda
                                                                                 Proprietor

                                  Membership No: A39621 CP No.: 14697
Peer Review No. 1805/2022
UDIN: A039621E000909237
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ANNEXURE C

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION.

  Preamble:

 Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors of every listed company shall constitute the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, to guide the Board on various issues on appointment, evaluate performance, 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

Objective: 

The Objective of the Policy is to ensure that:

฀ The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of 
the quality required to run the Company successfully;

฀ Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

฀ Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 
Company and its goals.

Definitions:

The definitions of some of the key terms used in this Policy are given below:

฀ “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder as amended from time to time.

฀ “Board of Directors” or Board, in relation to the company, means the collective body of the Directors of the 
Company.

฀ “Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted 
by the Board.

฀ “Company” means “Sheetal Cool Products Limited”.
฀ “Managerial Personnel” means Managerial Personnel or Persons, defined under section 196 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

฀ “Policy” or “This policy” means Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

฀ “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and 
includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

฀ “Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

฀ “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means;

 a. The Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager or the Whole-time Director;
 b. The Company Secretary and
 c. The Chief Financial Officer

฀ “Senior Management” shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members of its core management 
team excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below the 
chief executive officer/managing director/whole time director/manager (including chief executive 
officer/manager in case they are not part of the board) and shall specifically include company secretary and chief 
financial officer.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively 
assigned to them therein.
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Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consist of three or more nonexecutive directors, out of which at   
least one-half shall be independent director(s), if Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of 
this Committee but shall not chair such Committee.

 The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and applicable statutory requirements including the Listing Regulation.

Role of the Committee:

The role of the Committee shall include;

 a) Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes or independence of a director and  
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees.

 b) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

 c)  Devising a policy on Board diversity.

 d) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for 
further evaluation.

 e) Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key 
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

 f)  Recommend to the Board, appointment, remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management 
and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.

 The meeting of Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required to carry out the objectives set  
out in the Policy.

 The Committee shall have the authority to call such employee (s), senior official(s) and / or externals, as it deems fit. 
The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee.

 The Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or, in his absence, any other member of the 
Committee authorised by him, shall be present at the General meetings of the Company, to answer the 
shareholders queries, if any.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall set up a mechanism to carry out its functions and is further 
authorized to delegate any / all of its powers to any of the Directors and /or Officers of the Company, as deemed 
necessary for proper and expeditious execution.

Appointment of Managerial Personnel, Director, KMP and Senior Management:

 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 
appointment as Managerial Personnel, Director or KMP or Senior Management and recommend to the Board his 
/her appointment or re-appointment.

 A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he /she is considered 
for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience 
possessed by a person is sufficient /satisfactory for the concerned position.

 Appointment of Independent Directors is also subject to compliance with provisions of section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV and rules thereunder and the Listing Regulation.

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior Management:

 The Remuneration / Compensation / Profit linked Incentive etc. to Managerial Personnel, will be determined by the 
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The Remuneration /Compensation / Profit Linked 
Incentive etc. to be paid for Managerial Personnel shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of 
the Company and Central Government, wherever required.
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 The remuneration and commission to be paid to Managerial Personnel shall be as per the statutory provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

 If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 
remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government.

 If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums more 
than the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, 
where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for 
the Company.

 Increments if declared to the existing remuneration / compensation structure shall be recommended by the 
Committee to the Board which should be within the limits approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managerial 
Personnel.

 The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, 
in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company's Policy. The 
Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to Provident Fund, contribution to pension 
fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time. The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance 
between performance of the Company and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate.

 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior Management 
for indemnifying them against any official liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part 
of the remuneration payable to any such personnel.

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors:

 Remuneration / Profit Linked Commission: The remuneration / profit linked commission shall be in accordance 
with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force 
and Listing Regulation.

 Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board 
or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in 
the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the 
Central Government from time to time.

 Limit of Remuneration /Profit Linked Commission: Remuneration /profit linked Commission may be paid within the 
monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1%/3% of the net profits of the 
Company respectively.

Stock Options:

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management and any 
employee, except Independent Directors, shall be entitled to any Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) of the 
Company.

Policy on Board diversity:

 The Board of Directors shall have the optimum combination of Directors from the different areas / fields like 
production, Management, Quality Assurance, Finance, Sales and Marketing, Supply chain etc. or as may be 
considered appropriate.

 The Board shall have at least one Board member who has accounting or related financial management expertise 
and at least three members who are financially literate.

Monitoring, Evaluation and Removal:

 Evaluation: The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Managerial Personnel, Director, KMP 
and Senior Management on yearly basis.
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 Removal: The Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Managerial 
Personnel, Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, and all other 
applicable Acts, Rules and Regulations, if any.

Minutes of Committee Meeting:

 The proceedings of all meetings must be minutes and signed by the Chairperson of the said meeting or the 
Chairperson of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be circulated at the 
subsequent Board meeting for noting.

Quorum of Committee Meeting:

 The quorum for a meeting of the nomination and remuneration committee shall be either two members or one third 
of the members of the committee, whichever is greater, including at least one independent director in attendance. 
The nomination and remuneration committee shall meet at least once a year.

Amendment to the Policy:

 The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit.

 In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent 
with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail 
upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down 
under such amendment(s), Clarification, circular(s) etc.

Disclosure:

 The details of this Policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be disclosed in the Annual Report as part of 
Board's Report therein or alternatively the same may be put up on the Company's website and reference drawn 
thereto in the Annual Report.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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ANNEXURE D

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES:

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

 In today's context, the 'Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is defined as a mandatory way for a Company to 
balance its Economic, Social and Environmental objectives while enhancing the Shareholders' value and 
Stakeholders expectations. Sheetal Cool Products Limited (Company) has engaged itself towards this journey 
since its inception. The company is contributing towards promoting quality of education, improvement in living 
standard and upliftment of communities comprising weaker section in nearby areas. Basic education facilities in 
nearby areas, free supply of drinking water in nearby areas are also some of the welfare activities being undertaken 
by the Company as a part of its CSR Programs. The company in today's context is regularly working in the areas of 
preventive healthcare by organizing medical camps and awareness programs from time to time benefiting the 
residents of nearby areas.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

 As the Company fall under the criteria mentioned in the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however as per sub-section 9 of section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 where the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the functions of such Committee provided under this 
section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of such company. In the financial year under 
review the amount to be spent by the Company did not exceed Rs. 50 lakhs hence the Company has dissolved the 
Corporate Social responsibility committee. 

3. The web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy  and CSR Projects approved by the Board are  
disclosed on the website of the Company: 

 The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the same is placed on the website of the Company and the web link for the same is at Web Link for CSR policy 
https://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf,  CSR 
Projects weblink https://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/csr-annual-action-plan-scpl-1.pdf.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: 

 Not Applicable

5. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): 

 (a) Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years is Rs. 1,533.09 Lacs.

 (b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):- Rs. 30.66 lacs

 (c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL 

 (d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Rs. NIL

 (e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (6a+6b-6c) :- Rs. 30.66 lacs

6. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total amount 
spent for the 
Financial Year

Rs. 30.00 Lacs NA

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5)

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 

as per section 135(6)

Amount Unspent

Amount Date of 
Transfer

Name of 
the Fund

Amount Date of 
Transfer

NA - - -
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7. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project).

 (b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA

 (c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

 (d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c): NA.

 (e) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

8. (a) details of Unspent CSR Amount for the preceding three financial years: NA
 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial years(s):   

NA

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital assets, furnish the details relating to the assets so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: 

 Not Applicable 

10.        Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the net profit as per Section 135(5):

 Company has spent total amount of Rs.31.20 Lakh towards CSR activities, however, later came to know that an 
amount of Rs 1.20 Lakh spent through Shri Leva Patel Charitable Trust which found not registered with MCA. Hence 
short fall of Rs 66,180/- or any other above beyond the short fall amount as approved by the board will be transferred 
to specified Fund as mentioned in the Schedule VII of Companies act 2013 as an abundance compliance under 
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(I)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5)
Total amount spent for the financial year
Excess amount spent for the financial year[(ii)-(i)]
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 
previous financial year, if any
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

30.66
30.00
00.00

NIL
NIL

Sl. 
No.

Amount 
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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ANNEXURE- E

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED
GIDC Plot No. 75 to 81,
Amreli, Gujarat, INDIA 365601

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Sheetal Cool Products Limited (CIN: L15205GJ2013PLC077205) (hereinafter called “the Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ 
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended March 31, 2023 (“Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, according to the provisions of:

 (i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under.

 (ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under.

 (iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and byelaws framed there under;

 (iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of  
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

 (v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 ('SEBI Act'):

  (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011.

  (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

  (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018. 

  (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company as there was no reportable event during the 
Audit period under review)

  (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company as there was no reportable event during the 
Audit period under review)

  (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993; regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period under review); 

  (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 
Applicable to the Company there was no reportable event during the Audit period under review);

  (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 
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Applicable to the Company there was no reportable event during the Audit period under review);

  (I) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

 I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the 
relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied with the following laws 
applicable specifically to the Company:

 (a) The Food Safety and standard Act, 2006 and rules and regulations made there under;
 (b) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and Legal Metrology (Packaged Commodity Rule, 2011)

 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

 (I)  Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
 (ii)  Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited

 During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

 I further report that -

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors including Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act.

 Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

 All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes 
of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

 I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

 I further report that during the audit period, the company has not undertaken any event/action having a major 
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, 
etc. except below:

 The Company has migrated from SME Platform of BSE Limited to Main Board Platform of BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited during the year.

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A' and forms an integral 
part of this report.

  For Hardik Hudda & Associates,
  Practicing Company Secretaries

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

CS Hardik Hudda
                                                                                 Proprietor

                                  Membership No: A39621 CP No.: 14697
Peer Review No. 1805/2022
UDIN: A039621E000917201
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ANNEXURE “A” to Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,
SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED
GIDC Plot No. 75 to 81,
Amreli, Gujarat, INDIA 365601

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The Management of the Company is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records, devise proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are 
adequate and operate effectively. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records and 
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial Compliance.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial Records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records, Books of Accounts and cost records of 
the company.

4. Wherever required and necessary, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events, secretarial records and other factual position which cannot be 
otherwise verified.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

  For Hardik Hudda & Associates,
  Practicing Company Secretaries

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

CS Hardik Hudda
                                                                                 Proprietor

                                  Membership No: A39621 CP No.: 14697
Peer Review No. 1805/2022
UDIN: A039621E000917201
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ANNEXURE F

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

 
i. Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the  

financial year ended on 31st March 2023. 

 

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year.

iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: NA.

iv. The Company has 1534 permanent employees in the roles of the company.

 Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial Remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration - Not 
Applicable

 There is no exceptional circumstances for an increase in managerial remuneration to Whole Time Directors. Due to 
Increase in remuneration of employees on the roll, there is increase in median remuneration of employees.

v. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors.

 The Managing Directors or Whole time Directors have not availed any variable remuneration components.

vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company:

 It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

vii. The Company has no employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every employee, who-

 1. If employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the  
aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees.

 2. If employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate 
which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month.

If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, 
or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time 
director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the 
equity shares of the company.

Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuva
Mr. Sanjaybhau Bhuva
Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva

1.
2.
3.

Sr.
No

RatioDirector Remuneration Median
Remuneration

19.20 Lacs
16.80 Lacs
18.00 Lacs

1.07 lacs
1.07 lacs
1.07 lacs

17.90:1
16.78:1
15.66:1

Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuva, Managing Director
Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva, Whole Time Director
Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva, Whole Time Director 
Company Secretary 
Chief Financial Officer

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Sr.
No

% increaseKey Managerial Personnel

NIL
NIL
NIL
211%
NIL
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Date: September 02, 2023
Place: Amreli 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061]
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sheetal Cool Products Limited (“the Company”) which 
comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), Statement of Cash Flows, and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended 
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report except as stated in Emphasis of 
Matter below.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 39 to the financial statements where the Company’s management has stated that 
outstanding balances, if any, at the year end in respect of trade receivables, trade payables etc. are subject to confirmation 
from those respective parties and consequential reconciliation and/or adjustments arising there from. These have not 
been independently verified by us during the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of such balances as appearing 
in the balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the profit and net assets of the Company for the period and year 
ended March 31, 2023.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
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are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements. Refer Note 38 to the financial statements.

 ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

 iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.
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 iv.
  1. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

  2. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any 
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

 
   by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

  3. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain 
any material misstatement.

 v. The Company has not paid any dividends during the year and hence, the provisions of Section 123 of the Act 
are not applicable to the Company.

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Firm Registration No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants

Place : Rajkot, 

Date : 20/04/2023

(Hasmukh B. Kalaria)
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
UDIN:23042002BGVKCQ4405
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Annexure A

Referred to in the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements on of the Independent Auditors’ Report 
of even date to the members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 
March 31, 2023

(I)
 (a) In respect of its property, plant and equipment:

  (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its intangible assets.

 (b) The Company has a programme of verification of property, plant and equipment to cover all the items in a 
phased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain property, plant and equipment 
were physically verified by the Management during the current reporting period. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on 
the examination of the registered sale deed/transfer deed/conveyance deed, we report that, the title 
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and acquired buildings which are freehold, are held 
in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

 (d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the reporting period and hence, 
clause (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

 (e) As explained to us by the management of the Company, there have not been any proceedings initiated or 
pending against the Company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder during the current reporting period or as at the balance sheet date.

(ii)
 (a)  As per the information and explanation given to us physical verification of inventory has been conducted at 

reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification 
by the management is appropriate and discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each of the class of 
inventory were not noticed on physical verification.

 (b)   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of 
security of current assets; the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with the banks during 
the reporting period are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made investments in, provided any 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, hence clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any loans, 
investments or provided any guarantees and hence, the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during the 
current reporting period in terms of provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the 
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed 
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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(vii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities 
apart from a few delays in the payment of advance income tax.

  There were undisputed amounts payable in arrears as at the balance sheet date for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable. The details of which are as follows:

 (b) The Company does not have any statutory dues as referred sub-clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited on account of disputes.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any transactions, which 
were not recorded in the books of accounts and which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
current reporting period in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

 
(ix) (a)      In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or banks. The Company has not 
taken any loans or borrowings from the government.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been 
declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the reporting period.

 (c) The Company has obtained term loans during the current reporting period which, in our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, have been utilized for their stated purpose(s).

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we believe that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. We have however not made a detailed 
examination of the same.

 (e) The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence, clause (ix)(e) of the Order 
is not applicable.

 (f) The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence, clause (ix)(f) of the Order 
is not applicable.

(x) (a)  During the current reporting period, the Company has not raised funds by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 (b)      During the current reporting period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the current reporting 
period.

 (b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report 
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Name of 
statute

The Income 
Tax Act, 1961

Actual date 
of payment

Due date of 
payment

Nature 
of dues

Amount 
unpaid 
(in Rs. lacs)

Period to which 
the amount 
relates

Advance 
Tax

365.23 F.Y. 2022-23
A.Y. 2023-24

15/09/2022 Not paid till 
the date 

of report
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 (c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the current reporting period.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and 
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)
 (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business.

 (b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under review during our audit of the 
Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the current reporting period the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company, if any or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-I of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

 (b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the 
current reporting period and hence, is not required to obtain a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve 
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

 (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India.

 (d) The Company does not have any CICs as part of the Group and hence, clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xvii) In our opinion, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current reporting period and in the 
immediately preceding reporting period.

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the current reporting period under review.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amount towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer a Fund specified 
in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in 
compliance with the second proviso to sub- section (5) of section 135 of the Act.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any ongoing 
project(s) for which funds remain unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act and 
hence, is not required to transfer any funds to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xxi) Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in the report on the standalone financial statements of the Company.
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For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Firm Registration No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants

Place : Rajkot, 

Date : 20/04/2023

(Hasmukh B. Kalaria)
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
UDIN:23042002BGVKCQ4405
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Annexure B

Referred to in point f. of the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Independent Auditors’ 
Report of even date to the members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we 
have audited the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of Sheetal Cool Products Limited (“the Company”) 
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect of financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, except above, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Firm Registration No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants

Place : Rajkot, 

Date : 20/04/2023

(Hasmukh B. Kalaria)
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
UDIN:23042002BGVKCQ4405
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Note
As at 

March 31, 2022

I.

II.

12

The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

       

       
    

    
    

As at 
March 31, 2023

 

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104571W

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Managing Director
DIN: 06616061

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Whole Time Director
DIN: 06616086

Mahesh L. Purohit
Company Secretary
PAN: AQUPP0074F

Jinal R. Naria
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BKDPN6078B

Rajkot, April 20, 2023 Amreli, April 20, 2023

Hasmukh B. Kalaria
Partner
Mem. No. 042002

(in Rs. Lacs)

Assets

Non-current assets
(a) Plant, Property and Equipments
(b) Intangible Assets
(c) Financial Assets
     (i) Other Non-Current Financial Assets
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Total Non-Current Assets

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
     (i) Trade Receivable
     (ii) Cash and Cash Equivelants
     (iii) Loans
     (iv) Other Financial Assets
(c) Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity Share Capital
b) Other Equity
Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    (i) Borrowings
    (ii) Other Financial liabilities
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
c) Long Term Provisions
Total Non Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
    (i) Borrowings
    (ii) Trade Payables
    (iii) Other Financial Liabilities
b) Other Current Liabilities
c) Short Term Provisions
d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
                                 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

       

       
    

    
    

3
3

4
15

5

6
7
8
9

10

TOTAL ASSETS

As at 
April 01, 2021

4,904.54
10.41

297.39
65.72

5,278.06

16,783.67

316.26
194.03

7.26
13.34
80.33

17,394.88
22,672.94

       

5,291.02
11.18

281.03
-

5,583.22

11,706.17

2,078.00
94.26

5.48
6.18

116.52
14,006.62
19,589.84

       

6,533.49
14.90

208.71
-

6,757.10

9,718.02

552.14
407.89

6.01
2.36

152.27
10,838.67
17,595.77

11
12

13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22

1,050.00
8,318.78
9,368.78

2,390.04
1,110.05

-
3.42

3,503.52

6,187.62
2,476.29

102.51
222.01

0.02
812.19

9,800.63
13,304.15
22,672.94

1,050.00
6,272.39
7,322.39

3,111.58
1,164.87

26.18
3.09

4,305.72

4,307.62
2,713.59

79.25
160.36

4.01
696.92

7,961.74
12,267.46
19,589.84

1,050.00
4,429.55
5,479.55

3,557.47
1,205.05

86.95
8.76

4,858.23

3,576.55
3,301.70

66.86
122.94

3.62
186.32

7,258.00
12,116.22
17,595.77
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Particulars

 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2023
(in Rs. Lacs)

Note

Revenue From Operations
Other Income
Total Income (I + II)
Expenses:
    Cost of Materials Consumed
    Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
    Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-
    Progress and Stock-in-Trade
    Employee Benefits Expense
    Finance Costs
    Depreciation and Amortization Expense
    Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Profit Before exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV)
Exceptional Income/(expenses)-Net
Profit Before Tax (V + VI)

Tax Expense:
    (1) Current Tax
    (2) MAT Credit Availed / (entitlement)
    (3) Deferred Tax Liability/(assets)
    (4) Prior Period Tax
Profit for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII))
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (OCI) net of tax
expense
    (1) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
         Account
         Less: Income Tax Impact on Above
    (2) Items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss Account
         Less: Income Tax Impact on Above
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Expenses) (OCI) net
of tax expense

Total Comprehensive Income (IX + XI)

Earnings Per Equity Share Of Rs. 10 each
    (1) Basic
    (2) Diluted

I.
II.
III.
IV.

V.
VI.
VII.

VIII.

IX.
X.

XI.

XII.

XIII.

23
24

25

26
27
28
3
29

30

31

34,026.42
172.07

34,198.49

27,812.95
-

(5,074.46)
2,368.31

746.99
964.37

4,610.38
31,428.54

2,769.95
-

2,769.95

817.56
-

(92.23)
(0.79)

2,045.42

1.31

0.33
-
-

0.98

2,046.40

19.48
19.48

32,676.83
317.03

32,993.86

25,036.22
-

(1,090.64)
1,676.10

491.94
1,090.29
3,319.61

30,523.51

2,470.35
-

2,470.35

700.69
-

(63.89)
-

1,833.55

12.41
3.12

-
-

9.29

1,842.84

17.46
17.46

 The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104571W

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Managing Director
DIN: 06616061

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Whole Time Director
DIN: 06616086

Mahesh L. Purohit
Company Secretary
PAN: AQUPP0074F

Jinal R. Naria
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BKDPN6078B

Rajkot, April 20, 2023 Amreli, April 20, 2023

Hasmukh B. Kalaria
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
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For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022



 

Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Equity Share Capital

1,050.00
-

1,050.00
-

1,050.00

 The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

Balance as at 1st April 2021
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2022
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2023

Amount

Other Equity

Balance as at 1st April 2021
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Balance as at 31st March 2022

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Securities
Premium

Retained
Earnings

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Total

2,100.00
-
-

2,100.00

2,100.00

2,329.78
1,833.55

-
4,163.33

4,163.33

(0.22)
-

9.29
9.06

9.06

4,429.55
1,833.55

9.29
6,272.39

6,272.39

Balance as at 1st April 2022
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Balance as at 31st March 2023

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Securities
Premium

Retained
Earnings

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Total

2,100.00
-
-

2,100.00

2,100.00

4,163.33
2,045.42

-
6,208.74

6,208.74

9.06
-

0.98
10.04

10.04

6,272.39
2,045.42

0.98
8,318.78

8,318.78

A

B

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104571W

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Managing Director
DIN: 06616061

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Whole Time Director
DIN: 06616086

Mahesh L. Purohit
Company Secretary
PAN: AQUPP0074F

Jinal R. Naria
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BKDPN6078B

Rajkot, April 20, 2023 Amreli, April 20, 2023

Hasmukh B. Kalaria
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
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Particulars

 

Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2023

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(in Rs. Lacs)

Cash Flow from Operating Activity
 Net Profit Before Tax
 Adjustments For:
     Depreciation
     Interest & Financial Expenses
     (Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Asset
     Interest Received on Deposits
     Provision for Debtors
 
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes
 
Adjustment For:
     Inventories
     Trade Receivables
     Other Non-Current Financial Assets
     Financial Assets- Loans
     Other current financial Assets
     Trade Payables
     Short-term Provisions
     Other Non-current Financial Liabilities
     Long-term Provisions
     Other Current Liabilities
     Other Current Financial Liabilities
     Taxes Paid
 
Net Cash Generated from Operations
 
Cash Flow from Investment Activities
     Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments
     Proceeds from sale of PPE
     Change in Short-term loans and advances - Capital Advance
     Interest Received

 Net Cash Flow from Investment Activities

Cash Flow from Financial Activities:
     Changes in Long Term Borrowings (Net)
     Changes in Short Term Borrowings (Net)
     Interest & Financial Expenses

 Net Cash Flow from Financial Activities
 
Total of Cash Flow (A+B+C)
 Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
 Cash & Cash Equivalent at the ending of the year
 Cash & Cash Equivalent compriging of
 Cash on Hand
 Balances with Scheduled Banks

2,769.95

964.37
746.99
187.25
(11.19)

1.93

4,659.31

(5,077.50)
1,759.81

(16.36)
(1.78)
34.95

(237.30)
(3.99)

1,222.66
1.65

61.66
60.73

(701.50)

1,762.33

(2,081.72)
2.40
1.25
4.04

(2,074.04)

(721.55)
1,880.01
(746.99)

411.47

99.77
94.26

194.03

178.16
15.87

194.03

A.

B.

C.

Note: 1. The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes
          2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm this year's classification.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104571W

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Managing Director
DIN: 06616061

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Whole Time Director
DIN: 06616086

Mahesh L. Purohit
Company Secretary
PAN: AQUPP0074F

Jinal R. Naria
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BKDPN6078B

Rajkot, April 20, 2023 Amreli, April 20, 2023

Hasmukh B. Kalaria
Partner
Mem. No. 042002

2,470.35

1,090.29
491.94
17.84
(8.57)

-

4,061.85

(1,988.15)
(1,525.86)

(72.31)
0.53

25.46
(588.11)

0.39
770.53

6.74
37.42
1.08

(190.10)

539.46

(661.35)
-

10.28
4.75

(646.32)

(445.88)
731.06

(491.94)

(206.76)

(313.62)
407.89
94.26

28.53
65.73
94.26
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Background

 Sheetal Cool Products Limited (the “Company") is engaged in the business of manufacturing of ice cream, milk and 
milk products, namkeen, bakery & sweet products. The Company is a public limited company and is listed on the 
main board platform of BSE & NSE.

2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company

 A. Basis of preparation

  (i) Compliance with Ind AS

   These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

 
  (ii) Historical cost convention

   The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost 
convention basis, except for the following:

   1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
   2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell;
   3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

  (iii) Current non-current classification

   All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's 
normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

  (iv) Rounding of amounts

   All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

 B. Use of estimates and judgments

  The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously 
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and 
factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the 
existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the results are known/materialised.

  
  The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred 

after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

 C. Segment reporting:

  Geographical segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker.

 D. Foreign currency translation

  (i) Functional and presentation currency
   The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company's functional and 

presentation currency. The Company determines its own functional currency (the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the Company operates) and items included in the 
financial statements of the Company are measured using that functional currency.

 
  (ii) Transactions and balances
   Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the 

transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated into the Company's functional currency of the entity at the rates prevailing on the 
reporting date. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a 
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foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

   Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translation at reporting date exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 E. Revenue recognition

  Revenue is measured at the value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as 
revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, discounts, loyalty discount; indirect taxes and 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

  The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Company's activities as described below.

  Sale of goods
  Sales are recognised when substantial risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to customer. In case 

of domestic customer, generally sales take place when goods are dispatched or delivery is handed over to 
transporter, in case of export customers, generally sales take place when goods are shipped onboard 
based on bills of lading.

  Other operating revenue
  Interest on investments and deposits is booked on a time-proportion basis taking into account the 

amounts invested and the rate of interest.

  Revenue in respect of other types of income is recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding 
realisation of such income.

 F. Income tax

  The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income 
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

  The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 
at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes 
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

  Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income 
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of 
the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related defferred income tax assets is realised or 
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

  Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, 
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and 
losses.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax 
assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends 
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

  Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

 G. Impairment of non-financial assets

  Property, plant and equipments (PPE) and Intangible assets (IA) that have an indefinite useful life are not 
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in 
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circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and 
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered 
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

 H. Cash and cash equivalents

  For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 
within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

 I. Trade receivables

  Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less 
provision for impairment, if any.

 J. Inventories
  
  Inventories of raw materials, work-in-progress, stores and spares, finished goods and stock-in-trade are 

stated at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Goods-in-transit are stated 'at cost'. Cost 
comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. A cost formula used is 'First-in-First-out'. Due allowance is estimated 
and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary.

 K. Investments and other financial assets

  (I) Classification
   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

   (1) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
     income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and

   (2) those measured at amortised cost.
    The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial  

assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

  (ii) Measurement
   At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of 

financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

  Debt instruments:

  Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing 
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments into 
following categories:

  (1) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash 
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate 
method.

  (2) Fair value through profit and loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost are 
measured at fair value through Profit and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income.
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  Equity instruments:
  
  The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at 

fair value through profit and loss. However where the Company's management makes an irrevocable 
choice on initial recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in other 
comprehensive income (Currently no such choice made), there is no subsequent reclassification, on sale 
or otherwise, of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  (iii) Impairment of financial assets

   The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical 
trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other 
appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. Company is creating expected credit loss provision @ 5% on 
debtors having outstanding for more than 1-2 years from the date of transaction, @ 10% on debtors 
having outstanding for more than 2-3 years from the date of transaction, @ 20% on debtors having 
outstanding for more than 3 years from the date of transaction.

  (iv) Income recognition 

   Interest income

   Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

   Dividends

   Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive 
payment is established.

 L. Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost/deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any 
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated 
attributable costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

  
  Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
  
  Depreciation on property, plant and equipments is provided on Straight-line basis, over the estimated 

useful lives of assets. The Company depreciates its Property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the 
manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, and management believe that useful life of assets are same as 
those prescribed in Schedule II to the Act.

  The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

  In case of pre-owned assets, the useful life is estimated on a case to case basis.

  Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 M. Investment properties
  
  Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held either to earn rental 

income or for capital appreciation or for both, but neither for sale in the ordinary course of business nor 
used in production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment properties 

74

Sheetal Cool Products Limited   |   Annual Report 2022-23



are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

  Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property calculated as the difference between the net proceeds 
from disposal and the carrying amount of the Investment Property is recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

 N. Intangible assets

  Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that 
future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be 
reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairments. 
Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line 
basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible 
asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and 
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the 
level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

  Computer software

  Computer software is stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairments, if any.
 
  Amortisation method and useful life

  The Company amortizes computer software using the straight-line method over the period of 3 years.

 O. Borrowings

  Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. 
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the 
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred 
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over 
the period of the facility to which it relates.

  Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that 
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash 
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income.

 P. Borrowing costs

  General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and 
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.. Other interest and borrowing costs 
are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Q. Provisions and contingent liabilities

  Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

  The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of 
reimbursements, if any. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using 
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is 
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

  Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of 
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resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

  Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility 
of an outflow of economic resources is considered remote.

  Contingent liabilities and capital commitments disclosed are in respect of items which in each case are 
above the threshold limit.

 R. Employee benefits

  (i) Short-term obligations

   Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related 
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and 
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are 
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

  (ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

   The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit 
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the Government Securities (G-Sec) at the end of 
the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-
measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, 
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

  (iii) Post-employment obligations

   The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
   (a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
   (b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.
   
   Gratuity obligations

   The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair 
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method.

   The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated 
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

   The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet.

   Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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  Defined Contribution Plans

  The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local 
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as 
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the 
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

 S. Earnings Per Share

  (i) Basic earnings per share

   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
  - the profit attributable to owners of the Company
  - by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted 

for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

  (ii) Diluted earnings per share

   Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share 
to take into account:

  - the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential  
equity shares, and

  - the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 4 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

As at
March 31, 2023

(Unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits

Bank Fixed Deposit
(having maturity period more than 12 months)

Total

Particulars

Note: 5 Inventories

Raw materials

Finished goods

Note: 6 Trade Receivables

(in Rs. Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

122.49

174.90

297.39

88.73

192.30

281.03

61.43

147.28

208.71

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

2,919.66

13,864.01

16,783.67

2,916.62

8,789.55

11,706.17

2,019.10

7,698.92

9,718.02

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six
months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Less: Expected Credit Loss

Sub total

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six 
months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

19.65

-

1.93

17.71

298.54

316.26

442.35

-

-

442.35

1,635.65

2,078.00

340.35

-

-

340.35

211.79

552.14

6.1  Trade receivables ageing schedule

(Outstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction)

Unsecured
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
Less than 6 months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Less: Expected Credit Loss

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

298.54
0.11
8.14
7.53
3.87

318.19

1.93

316.26

1,635.65
172.58

11.32
8.33

250.12
2,078.00

-

2,078.00

211.79
28.19
17.45

294.71
-

552.14

-

552.14
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 7 Cash and Cash Equivelants

As at
March 31, 2023

Bank Balances:-

In Current Account
Other Bank Balance

Cash on hand

Total

Particulars

Note: 8 Loans - Current

(Unsecured and Considred Good)

Loans to Employees

Note: 9 Other Financial Assets-Current

(in Rs. Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

0.10
15.77

178.16

194.03

65.73
-

28.53

94.26

381.99
-

25.89

407.89

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

7.26

7.26

Interest and Dividend Receivables on Investments

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

13.34

13.34
Note: 10 Other Current Assets

Statutory Receivable (net)
Advances to Suppliers
Capital Advances
Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind
Prepaid Expenses
Other Current Assets

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

25.85
1.47
3.47

16.40
33.13

-

80.33

33.64
35.42
4.72

35.18
4.05
3.51

116.52

25.85
26.09
15.00
69.17
16.15

-

152.27

5.48

5.48

6.01

6.01

6.18

6.18

2.36

2.36
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note:11 Equity Share Capital

As at
March 31, 2023

Authorised
1,50,00,000 (Previous years 1,50,00,000)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
1,05,00,000 (Previous year 1,05,00,000)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Total

Particulars

11.1  The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:-

Shares outstaning at beginning 
of the year

Add: Issue of shares

11.2 The details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

(in Rs. Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

1,500.00
1,500.00

1,050.00

1,050.00

As at March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021

1,05,00,000

-

1,05,00,000

1,500.00
1,500.00

1,050.00

1,050.00

1,500.00
1,500.00

1,050.00

1,050.00

No of shares (Rs. In lakhs) No of shares (Rs. In lakhs) No of shares (Rs. In lakhs)

1,050.00

-

1,050.00

1,05,00,000

-

1,05,00,000

1,050.00

-

1,050.00

1,050.00

-

1,050.00

1,05,00,000

-

1,05,00,000

Sanjaybhai Dakubhai Bhuva
Dineshbhai Dakubhai Bhuva
Asmitaben Sanjaybhai Bhuva
Kajalben Dineshbhai Bhuva
Nayanaben Bhupatbhai Bhuva

As at March 31, 2023
Name of the Shareholder

As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021

18,15,450
8,48,550
5,35,950

16,70,150
7,55,450

No of shares % holding No of shares No of shares

17.29%
8.08%
5.10%

15.91%
7.19%

18,15,450
8,48,550
5,35,950

10,18,050
7,04,250

17.29%
8.08%
5.10%
9.70%
6.71%

17.29%
8.08%
5.10%
9.70%
6.71%

18,15,450
8,48,550
5,35,950

10,18,050
7,04,250

11.3 Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Dakubhai Jivrajbhai Bhuva
Sanjay Dakubhai Bhuva
Bhupatbhai Dakubhai Bhuva
Dineshkumar Dakubhai Bhuva
Asmitaben Sanjaybhai Bhuva
Kajalben Dineshbhai Bhuva
Shantaben Dakubhai Bhuva
Nayanaben Bhupatbhai Bhuva
Hardik Dineshbhai Bhuva
Ektaben Hardikbhai Bhuva

As at March 31, 2023
Name of the Promoters

As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021

5,06,250
18,15,450
2,38,800
8,48,550
5,35,950

16,70,150
4,84,800
7,55,450

14,400
17,600

No of shares % holding No of shares % holding No of shares % holding

4.82%
17.29%
2.27%
8.08%
5.10%

15.91%
4.62%
7.19%
0.14%
0.17%

5,06,250
18,15,450
2,38,800
8,48,550
5,35,950

10,18,050
1,87,500
7,04,250

14,400
-

4.82%
17.29%

2.27%
8.08%
5.10%
9.70%
1.79%
6.71%
0.14%
0.00%

4.82%
17.29%
2.27%
8.08%
5.10%
9.70%
1.79%
6.71%
0.14%
0.00%

5,06,250
18,15,450
2,38,800
8,48,550
5,35,950

10,18,050
1,87,500
7,04,250

14,400
-

11.4 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion of their shareholding.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 12 Other Equity

As at
March 31, 2023

Reserves and Surplus
A. Securities Premium
Opening Balance
(+) Change during the year
Balance as at year end

B. Retained Earnings
Opening balance
(+) Net Profit for year
Balance as at year end

C. Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance
(+) Changes during the year
Balance as at year end

Total

Particulars

Note: 13 Borrowings-Non Current

Secured

Term loans from banks
Vehicle loan from banks
Working capital term loans from banks

13.1 Terms of Repayment of Loans:

(in Rs. Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

1,065.95
157.42

1,166.67

2,390.04

1,564.13
99.68

1,447.77

3,111.58

2,431.17
217.97
908.34

3,557.47

Term Loans from Banks (Bank of baroda)

Vehicle Loan from Banks (HDFC bank)

Working capital term loans from
banks (Bank of baroda)

Nature of SecurityParticulars(Name of financier) Terms of Repayment Rate of Interest

2,100.00
-

2,100.00

4,163.33
2,045.42
6,208.74

9.06
0.98

10.04

8,318.78

2,100.00
-

2,100.00

2,329.78
1,833.55
4,163.33

(0.22)
9.29
9.06

6,272.39

2,100.00
-

2,100.00

1,719.99
609.78

2,329.78

-
(0.22)
(0.22)

4,429.55

Hypothecation of entire plant &
machineries, other movable
assets and mortgage of land &
building of the Company

Hypothecation of the respective vehicle

Charge over entire current asset
and movable asset of the company

Repayable in 44 to 65 Monthly
Installments of Rs. 1,79,000/- to
25,35,000/-

Repayable in 60 EMI of Rs. 38,160/- 
to 63,400/-

Repayable in 48 Monthly Installments
of Rs. 4,04,167 to 13,43,750
(after moratorium of 2 years)

Ranging from
8.30% to 8.80%

8.13%

Ranging from
7.15% to 8.70%

Note: 14 Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current

Security deposits from dealers

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

1,110.05

1,110.05

1,164.87

1,164.87

1,205.05

1,205.05
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 15 Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Liability
Less: Deferred Tax Asset
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset)

Total

Particulars

Note: 16 Long term provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity

Note: 17 Borrowings- Current

(in Rs. Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

-
(65.72)
(65.72)

(65.72)

26.96
(0.78)
26.18

26.18

89.20
(2.25)
86.95

86.95

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

3.42

3.42

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts

Secured 

Working Capital Loans from banks

As at
March 31, 2023

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

776.38

5,411.24

6,187.62

17.1 Terms of Repayment

Working Capital Loan from
bank (Bank of baroda)

Hypothecation of the current and 
movable assets of the Company

Repayable on demand 8.15%

Nature of Security
Particulars

(Name of financier) Terms of Repayment Rate of Interest

3.09

3.09

8.76

8.76

808.63

3,498.99

4,307.62

872.74

2,703.82

3,576.55Total

Note: 18 Trade Payables

Micro, Small and Medium Entreprises 

*Others

As at
March 31, 2023

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

43.29

2,433.00

2,476.29

80.60

2,632.99

2,713.59

50.61

3,251.09

3,301.70Total

*Note : Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 certain disclosure are required to be made for enterprises which are
covered under the Act. The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

18.1  Trade payables ageing schedule

As at
March 31, 2023

(Outstanding for the following periods from the date
of transaction)

Undisputed trade payables - MSMEs
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Undisputed trade payables - other than MSMEs
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Total

Particulars

18.1 The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises based on available information with the co. is as under:

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid at the year end
Interest due on above and remaining unpaid interest at the year end
Interest paid other than sec 16 beyond the appointed day during the
year
Principal amount paid beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest piad under sec 16 beyond appoint day during the year
Interest due and payable for payment already made
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in
succeeding years

Note: 19 Other Financial Liabilities - Current

(in Rs. Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

43.29
-
-
-

43.29

2,393.26
-
-

39.74
2,433.00

2,476.29

As at
March 31, 2023

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

Capital Creditors

Employee Related Liabilities

As at
March 31, 2023

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

9.84

92.67

102.51

Note: 20 Other Current Liabilities

Total

Statutory Dues

Advance from Customers

As at
March 31, 2023

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

154.56

67.45

222.01

16.21

144.15

160.36

74.89

48.05

122.94Total

80.60
-
-
-

80.60

2,502.76
73.16
32.35
24.73

2,632.99

2,713.59

50.52
-

0.09
-

50.61

3,144.54
48.19
58.36

-
3,251.09

3,301.70

43.29
-
-

-
-
-
-

80.60
-
-

-
-
-
-

50.61
-
-

-
-
-
-

47.31

31.94

79.25

36.01

30.85

66.86
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Note: 21 Short Term Provisions

As at
March 31, 2023

Provision for Expenses
Provision for Employee Benefits:
Gratuity

Total

Particulars

Note: 22 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Provision for Income-tax

(in Rs. Lacs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

-

0.02

0.02

4.00

0.01

4.01

3.45

0.17

3.62

As at
March 31, 2023

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

As at 
April 01, 2021

812.19

812.19

696.92

696.92

186.32

186.32

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
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Note: 23 Revenue from Operations

Sale of Products
(a) Domestic Sales
(b) Export Sales

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Total

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

33,969.73
56.69

34,026.42

34,026.42

32,658.56
18.27

32,676.83

32,676.83

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 24 Other Income

Interest on Financial Assets
    On Bank Fixed Deposits
    On Others
Insurance Claim
Commission Income
Income from government grants/subsidies
Miscellaneous Income

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Total

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

9.69
1.50
1.83
6.68

-
152.38

172.07

7.07
1.50

42.60
7.32

211.97
46.57

317.03

Note: 25 Cost of Materials Consumed

Opening Inventory
Add : Purchase
Less : Closing Inventory

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Total

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

2,916.62
27,815.99

2,919.66

27,812.95

2,019.10
25,933.73
2,916.62

25,036.22

Note: 26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Inventories (at close):
Finished Goods

Inventories (at commencement):
Finished Goods

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Total

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

13,864.01
13,864.01

8,789.55
8,789.55

(5,074.46)

8,789.55
8,789.55

7,698.92
7,698.92

(1,090.64)

Note: 27 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and Wages
Contributions to -
Provident fund, Superannuation scheme & Other funds
Staff welfare expenses

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Total

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

2,343.37

5.84
19.10

2,368.31

1,659.29

6.49
10.31

1,676.10
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27.1 Employee Benefits, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:

Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan:

(I) Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet
Present value of unfunded Obligations
Present value of funded Obligations
Fair Value of plan assets
Net Liability (asset)

(II) Amounts to be recognised in Profit and Loss Account
Service Cost
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Curtailment and settlement
Net Interest Cost
Total included in Exployees Expenses
Expenses Deducted from the Fund
Total Charged to profit and loss

(III) Other Comprehensive Income for the Period
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligation
Due to Change in Financial Assumption
Due to change in demographic assumption
Due to Experience Adjustments
Return on planned assets excluding amounts included in interest income

Amount Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(IV) Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation
Interest cost
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligation
Due to Change in Financial Assumption
Due to change in demographic assumption
Due to Experience Adjustments
Current Service Cost
Loss/Gain on Curtailment
Liabilities Extinguished on settlement
Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the nature of
purchase
Exchange difference of foreign plan
Benefits Paid
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

(V) Assumptions:
Discount Rate (per annum)
Rate of Increase in Salary

Withdrawal Rate

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

3.45
-
-

3.45

1.44
-
-

0.22
1.66

-
1.66

-
(0.08)

-
(1.23)

-

(1.31)

3.09
0.22

(0.08)
-

(1.23)
1.44

-
-

-
-
-

3.45

3.09
-
-

3.09

5.97
-
-

0.61
6.58

-
6.58

-
(0.16)

-
(12.25)

-

(12.41)

8.92
0.61

(0.16)
-

(12.25)
5.97

-
-

-
-
-

3.09

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

7.45%
7.00%

10.00% p.a at
younger ages

reducing to
2.00%

p.a at older ages

7.25%
7.00%

10.00% p.a at
younger ages
reducing to

2.00%
p.a at older ages

Note: 28 Finance Cost

Interest Expenses
    On Long Term Loan
    On Short Term Loan
    On Other Borrowing and/or late payments
Other Borrowing Costs

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Total

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

209.37
383.29
77.52
76.81

746.99

202.50
216.46
38.47
34.51

491.94

Note: The Company's interest expense on long-term loans from banks is shown as net of interest subsidy recognised of Rs. Nil. (P.Y. Rs.103.86 lakhs).
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Note: 29 Other Expenses

Direct Expenses

Stores and Spares Consumed
Power and Fuel
Factory and Other Expenses
Repairs to Building
Repairs to Machinery

Indirect Expenses

Rent Expense
Transportation and Distribution Expenses
Bank charges
Water Chrages
Repairs to Others
Insurance
Rates and Taxes
Directors' Sitting Fees
Telephone and Postage
Printing and Stationery
Donation and Other Subscriptions
Registration and Filing Fees
Legal & Professional Fees
Travelling and Conveyance
Payments to Auditors
Advertisement and Publicity
Catering and Canteen Expense
Training and Recuritment Expense
Safety and Security Expense
Payment for Technical Services
Commission to Selling Agents
CSR Expense
Vehicle Running Expenses
Export Expenses
Loss on Sale of Asset
Provision for Expected credit loss
Miscellaneous Expenses

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

42.92
3,113.85

49.06
0.61

40.45

15.08
5.11
6.33
1.95

14.09
17.49
27.68
0.75
5.60

11.70
1.34
3.23

129.94
134.62

5.25
283.95

49.29
-

1.94
18.74
7.32

31.20
369.14

2.46
187.25

1.93
30.07

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

98.49
2,096.22

84.40
10.91
60.74

10.23
11.87
8.60

-
16.47
50.98
10.23

0.75
7.67

14.32
2.34
4.94

31.37
77.71

4.00
255.07
64.28

0.94
-

17.07
3.68

18.44
300.59

0.20
17.84

-
39.24

Total 4,610.38 3,319.61

Note: The Company's electricity expenses is shown as net of wind-mill and solar power generation income recognised of Rs. 231.36 lacs (P.Y. 662.81 lacs)
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29.1  Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year
Amount spent during the year on :
Construction/ Acquisition of any asset
On purpose other than above
Amount of shortfall at the end of the year
Total of previous year shortfall

Nature of CSR activity

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a
trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure
as per relevant Accounting Standard
Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the
provision during the year should be shown separately.

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

31.20

-
31.20

-
-

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

18.44

-
18.44

-
-

Promoting healthcare
including preventive

healthcare, distributation
of food and cloths,

promotion of education
and animal welfare etc.

Providing medical facilities,
medicines, oxygen cylinders,

Ambulance facility to
needy people. Organized
various medical camps,

health awareness
programmes etc

See Note. 33 for
related party transaction NA

NANA

29.2 Payments to Auditors as:

Statutory Auditors :
i) Audit Fees
ii) For Taxation matters

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Total

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

4.20
1.05

5.25

3.20
0.80

4.00
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Note: 30 Income Tax

Net Tax Expenses
   Current tax
   Deferred tax liability/(assets)
   Prior Period Tax

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit
computed by applying the Income tax rate
Profit/ (loss) before tax
India’s statutory income tax rate
Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes

Non-deductibles expenses
Prior Period Tax

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

817.56
(92.23)
(0.79)

724.53

2,769.95
25.17%
697.14

28.19
(0.79)

724.53

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 31 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In lakhs)

Weighted average number of shares considered for 
calculating EPS (In Nos.)

Basic Earnings per share (Rs.)
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.)
Face Value per equity share (Rs.)

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

2,045.42

1,05,00,000

19.48
19.48
10.00

700.69
(63.89)

-
636.80

2,470.35
25.17%
621.74

15.06
-

636.80Total

1,833.55

1,05,00,000

17.46
17.46
10.00

Note: 32 Additional regulatory information

32.1  Details of benami property(ies) held

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

32.2  Security of current assets against borrowings

The Company is having borrowings from banks or financial institutions against which security of current assets is given. Quarterly returns and statements of current
assets filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions are generally in agreement with the books of accounts.There are no material discrepancies found.

32.3  Details of wilful default

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution, in accordance with the guidance on wilful defaulters issued by Reserve
Bank of India.

32.4  Relationship with struck-off companies

The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

32.5  Delay in registration/satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

32.6  Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers of Companies as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction
on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
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32.7 Analytical ratios

Current ratio
Current assets (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Current liabilities (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B)

Debt-equity ratio
Total debt (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Shareholders' funds (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B)

Debt service coverage ratio
Net profit/(loss) before tax (in Rs. lacs)
Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs)
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense (in Rs. lacs)
Earnings available for debt services (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Interest expense (in Rs. lacs)
Principal repayment (in Rs. lacs)
Debt service (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B)

Return on equity
Net profit/(loss) after tax (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Average shareholders' funds (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (%) = (A)/(B)

Inventory turnover ratio
Cost of goods sold (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Average inventory (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B)

Trade receivables turnover ratio
Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Average trade receivables (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B)

Trade payables turnover ratio
Total purchase (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Average trade payables (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B)

Net capital turnover ratio
Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Current assets (in Rs. lacs)
Less: Current liabilities (in Rs. lacs)
Net working capital (in Rs. lacs)
Average net working capital (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B)

Net profit ratio
Net profit/(loss) after tax (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (%) = (A)/(B)

Return on capital employed
Net profit/(loss) before tax (in Rs. lacs)
Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs)
Earning before interest and taxes (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Average capital employed (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (%) = (A)/(B)

Return on investment
Income earned on investments (in Rs. lacs) (A)
Average investments (in Rs. lacs) (B)
Ratio (%) = (A)/(B)

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022

17,394.88
9,800.63

1.77

8,577.66
9,368.78

0.92

2,769.95
746.99
964.37

4,481.31
746.99
954.04

1,701.03
2.63

2,045.42
8,345.59
24.51%

22,738.49
14,244.92

1.60

34,026.42
1,197.13

28.42

27,815.99
2,594.94

10.72

34,026.42
17,394.88
9,800.63
7,594.24
6,819.56

4.99

2,045.42
34,026.42

6.01%

2,769.95
746.99

3,516.94
12,250.21

28.71%

-
-

NA

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

% change

14,006.62
7,961.74

1.76

7,419.20
7,322.39

1.01

2,470.35
491.94

1,090.29
4,052.58

491.94
4,155.18
4,647.12

0.87

1,833.55
6,400.97
28.64%

23,945.58
10,712.10

2.24

32,676.83
1,315.07

24.85

25,933.73
3,007.65

8.62

32,676.83
14,006.62
7,961.74
6,044.89
4,812.78

6.79

1,833.55
32,676.83

5.61%

2,470.35
491.94

2,962.29
10,982.94

26.97%

-
-

NA

0.89%

-9.64%

202.10%

-14.44%

-28.59%

14.39%

24.32%

-26.51%

7.13%

6.44%

0.00%

92

Sheetal Cool Products Limited   |   Annual Report 2022-23



Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Reason for change for more than 25%

1.   Debt service coverage ratio
DSCR has decreased on account of decrease in loans payable in the current reporting period

2.   Inventory turnover ratio
Inventory turnover ratio has decreased on account of increase in inventories held during the current reporting

3.   Net capital turnover ratio
Net working capital ratio has decreased due to increase in net working capital during the current reporting

32.8  Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any such transactions which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the income tax act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act 1961).

32.9  Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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Note: 33 Related Party Information as per Ind AS 24

(A) Name of related party and nature of relationship

Name of related party

1. Where significant influence exists

DJBS Foundation Sheetal Seva Trust
Sheetal Pan & Coldrinks, Amreli
Sheetal Smiley Parlour
Sheetal Ice cream Parlour

2. Key Managerial Personnel

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Dineshbhai D. Bhuva
Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Kiranben N. Gajera
Ajaykumar V. Mandanka
Vijaybhai B. Desai
Mahesh Labhshankar Purohit ^
Jinal R. Naria
Juhi R. Chaturvedi *
Kaushikbhai Sakhavala ~

3. Relatives Of Key Managerial Personnel

Dakubhai D. Bhuva
Ashmitaben S. Bhuva
Hardik D. Bhuva
Keval D. Bhuva
Nayanaben B. Bhuva
Kajalben D. Bhuva
Ektaben H. Bhuva
Yash B Bhuva

* Resigned from 30th June, 2021
~ Appointed from 01st July, 2021 and Resigned as on 01st November, 2021
^ Appointed from 02nd November, 2021

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
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(B) Transactions with related party

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Dineshbhai D. Bhuva
Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Mahesh Labhshankar Purohit
Jinal R. Naria
Juhi R. Chaturvedi *
Kaushikbhai Sakhavala ~

Director Sitting Fees
Kiranben N. Gajera
Ajaykumar V. Mandanka
Dakubhai D. Bhuva
Vijaybhai B. Desai

Salary to Relatives of KMP's
Ashmitaben S. Bhuva
Hardik D. Bhuva
Keval D. Bhuva
Nayanaben B. Bhuva
Kajalben D. Bhuva
Ektaben H. Bhuva
Yash B Bhuva

Rent Paid
Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva

Revenue from sale of goods
Sheetal Pan & Coldrinks, Amreli
Sheetal Smiley Parlour
Sheetal Ice cream Parlour

Reimbursement of expenses paid
Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Keval D. Bhuva

CSR expenses paid
DJBS Foundation Sheetal Seva Trust

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Name of Related Party For the year ended
March 31,2022

19.20
18.00
16.80
4.20
4.20

-
-

0.25
0.25
0.09
0.16

5.40
7.20
7.20
5.40
5.40
4.80
4.80

2.40

42.42
30.19
25.42

117.82
37.51

30.00

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

19.20
18.00
16.80

1.35
4.55
1.20
2.46

0.25
0.25
0.25

-

3.90
4.80
4.80
3.90
3.90
2.70
3.60

2.40

142.45
71.93

107.32

18.28
-

Transaction Amount
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(C)Outstanding Balances with related party

Remuneration payable to KMPs
Dineshbhai D. Bhuva
Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Mahesh Labhshankar Purohit
Jinal R. Naria

Salary Payable to Related Party
Ashmitaben S. Bhuva
Hardik D. Bhuva
Keval D. Bhuva
Nayanaben B. Bhuva
Kajalben D. Bhuva
Ektaben H. Bhuva
Yash B Bhuva

Rent Payable
Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Name of Related Party For the year ended
March 31,2022

1.50
1.40
0.35
0.35

0.45
0.60
0.60
0.45
0.45
0.40
0.40

-

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

-
-

0.35
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

0.60

Outstanding balance

(D)  There are no provisions for doubtful debts or amounts written off or written back in respect of debts due to or due from related parties

(E)  Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of information available with them and relied upon by the Auditors

96

Sheetal Cool Products Limited   |   Annual Report 2022-23



Note: 34 Fair Value Measurements

[i] Financial assets
Security deposit
Trade receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets

[ii] Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Carrying amount
March 31, 2023

(in Rs. Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation
of fair value.

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

122.49
316.26
194.03
174.90

7.26
13.34

828.27

8,577.66
2,476.29
1,212.56

12,266.51

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

[i] Financial assets
Security deposit
Trade receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets

[ii] Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Carrying amount
March 31, 2022

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

88.73
2,078.00

94.26
192.30

5.48
6.18

2,464.95

7,419.20
2,713.59
1,244.11

11,376.91

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(A)  Financial instruments by category

[I] Financial assets
Investment in debt instruments
Security deposit
Trade receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets

[ii] Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Carrying amount
April 01, 2021

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
61.43

552.14
407.89
147.28

6.01
2.36

1,177.10

7,134.02
3,301.70
1,271.92

11,707.64

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

97

Sheetal Cool Products Limited   |   Annual Report 2022-23



Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

(B) FAIR VALUE HEIRARCHY

 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 
The Company has made certain judgements and estimates in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and 
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

 To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company as classified the financial instruments into three 
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is as follows:

 Level 1: Level 1 of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities

 Level 2: Level 2 heirarchy includes financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise 
the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.

 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on the observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3 heirarchy.

(C) VALUATION TECHNIQUES

 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include
 - the use of quoted market prices for mutual funds
 - the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis or such other acceptable valuation  

methodology, wherever applicable

 There are no items in the financial instruments, which required level 3 valuation.

Note: 35 Capital Management

The Company policy is to have robust financial base so as to maintain outsider's confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
Management monitors the return on capital, as well as level of dividends to equity shareholders.The company monitors capital using a ratio of 
"adjusted net debt" to "equity". For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liability, Comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowing, 
less cash and cash equivalents. Total Equity includes the share capital, other equity.

The capital gearing ratio is as follows:

Borrowings (Incl. Current Maturity)
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Adjusted Net Debt (A)

Equity Share Capital
Other Equity
Total Equity (B)

Adjusted Net Debt to Total Equity ratio (A/B)

March 31,2023Particulars March 31,2022

8,577.66
(194.03)
8,383.63

1,050.00
8,318.78
9,368.78

0.89

7,419.20
(94.26)

7,324.94

1,050.00
6,272.39
7,322.39

1.00
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Note: 36 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, viz liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk. The Management of the Company has
the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk policy framework. The risk management policies are formulated after the identification 
and analysis of the risks and suitable risk limits and controls are set which are monitored & reveiwed periodically. The changes in the market conditions and allied 
areas are accordingly reflected in the changes of the policy. The key risks and mitigating actions are placed before the Audit Committee of the Company who then 
evaluate and take the necessary corrective action. The sources of risk, which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages these risks with their
 impact on the Financial Statements is given below:

[A] Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if the counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating 
activities (primarily trade receivables). However, the credit risk on account of financing activities, i.e., balances with banks is very low, since the Company holds all the 
balances with approved bankers only.

Trade receivables

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the customers outstanding balances to which the Company 
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, as the Company’s customer base is large, 
reputed and having good credit credential as well as that they are long standing customers. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly 
basis. Historical experience of collecting receivables of the Company is supported by low level of past default and hence the credit risk is perceived to be low.

[B] Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company faces in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure 
that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, Management considers both normal and stressed 
conditions.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The below table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table 
are contractual undiscounted cash flows, balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk - 
Foreign Currency

Market risk - 
Interest rate

Trade receivables,
Cash and cash

Borrowings, Trade
payables and other liabilities

Foreign currency receivables and
payables; Forecasted foreign
currency transactions

Long-term borrowings at
variable interest rates

Aging analysis, Credit ratings

Cash flow budgeted Vs actuals

Cash flow forecasting and
Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Credit limits and bank gaurantees

Availibity of commited credit lines and
borrowing facilities

Insignificant foreign currency exposure

The management monitors the rates of
interests and continues to evaluate refinancing
of debts at lower rates of interest on a
regular basis.

Risk  Exposure from Measurement Management

31-Mar-23
Non-derivatives
Borrowings (including interest accrued)
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total
31-Mar-22
Non-derivatives
Borrowings (including interest accrued)
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total
01-Apr-21
Non-derivatives
Borrowings (including interest accrued)
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total

Particulars

8,577.66
2,476.29
1,212.56

12,266.51

7,419.20
2,713.59
1,244.11

11,376.91

7,134.02
3,301.70
1,271.92

11,707.64

More than
2 years

6,187.62
2,476.29

102.51
8,766.41

4,307.62
2,713.59

79.25
7,100.45

3,576.55
3,301.70

66.86
6,945.12

 873.37
-
-

873.37

776.38
-
-

776.38

872.74
-
-

872.74

1,516.67
-

1,110.05
2,626.73

2,335.20
-

1,164.87
3,500.07

2,684.73
-

1,205.05
3,889.78

8,577.66
2,476.29
1,212.56

12,266.51

7,419.20
2,713.59
1,244.11

11,376.91

7,134.02
3,301.70
1,271.92

11,707.64

Carrying
Amount

Upto 1
Year 1-2 Year Total
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[C] Market risk

 The Company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:

 • Currency risk; and
 • Interest rate risk

 The above risks may affect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments.

 (i) Foreign currency risk
  The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impact the Company’s exports revenue and imports of raw material.  
  
  The risk exposure is with respect to various currencies viz. USD. The risk is measured through monitoring the net exposure to various foreign 

currencies and the same is minimized to the extent possible.

  (a) Foreign currency risk exposure

   The Company does not have foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period.

  (b) Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

   The sensitivity of profit and loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial 
instruments. As the Company's exposure to foreign currency is insignificant, the overall exposure of foreign currency risk is not 
significant to the operations of the Company.

 (ii) Interest rate risk

  Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair 
values of fixed interest bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctuations in the interest rates, if such assets /borrowings are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing 
borrowings will flucutate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company to change in interest rate at end of the reporting periods are as follows:

Variable rate borrowing
Fixed rate borrowing

Amount % of TotalParticulars
March 31, 2023

8,577.66
-

8,577.66

Amount % of Total
March 31, 2022

100.00%
0.00%

7,419.20
-

7,419.20

100.00%
0.00%

Interest rate increase by 100 basis points
Interest rate decrease by 100 basis points

Impact on profit after taxParticulars
March 31, 2023

(114.63)
114.63

March 31, 2022

(99.04)
99.04

Sensitivity
Profit ans loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expenses from borrowing as a result of change in interset rate.

Impact on profit after tax

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
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Note: 37 Segment Information :

(a)  Primary segment - Business Segment
The Company's operations fall under two operating segment "Milk and Milk Products" & "Namkeen Products". However on the basis of management's evaluation
of the namkeen products segment, the segment does not meet quantitative thresholds criteria, hence, segment reporting is not applicable as per Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 108 - Segment Reporting.

(b) Secondary segment - Geographical Segment
Information of geographical segment:

Segment Revenue

Carrying cost of Assets by 
location of Assets

Additions to Assets and Intangibles

In India
(Rs. In lakhs)Particulars

2022-23
2021-22

2022-23
2021-22

2022-23
2021-22

33,969.73
32,658.56

4,914.96
5,302.19

2,044.25
1,241.16

56.69
18.27

-
-

-
-

34,026.42
32,676.83

4,914.96
5,302.19

2,044.25
1,241.16

Outside India
(Rs. In lakhs)

Total
(Rs. In lakhs)Year

Net Profit for the period under Previous Indian GAAP

Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS

Particulars

1,842.84

1,842.84

Year Ended on
31.03.2022

Note: 38  The reconciliation of net profit reported in accordance with Indian GAAP to total comprehensive Income in
accordance with Ind AS is given below

Other Equity under previous GAAP

Other Equity under Ind AS

Particulars

4,429.55

4,429.55

As at
01.04.2021

Reconciliation of other equity between previous GAAP and Ind AS

6,272.39

6,272.39

As at
31.03.2022

Note: 39 

1.  Previous year's figures have been regrouped whereever necessary.
2.  The outstanding balance as on year end in respect of trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and other payables, and other receivables, 
     if any, are subject to confirmation from respective parties and consequential reconciliation and/or adjustments arising there from, if any. Management of the
     Company, however, does not expect any material variation.
3.  According to the opinion of the management of the Company, the value of realization of trade and other receivables and loans and advances given in the
 ordinary course of the business, if any, would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104571W

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva
Managing Director
DIN: 06616061

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva
Whole Time Director
DIN: 06616086

Mahesh L. Purohit
Company Secretary
PAN: AQUPP0074F

Jinal R. Naria
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BKDPN6078B

Rajkot, April 20, 2023 Amreli, April 20, 2023

Hasmukh B. Kalaria
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
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